
CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

FINANCIAL REPORT 

Year Ended June 30, 2024 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 1-4 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position 7 
Statement of Activities 8 

Fund Financial Statements 
Major Funds' Descriptions 1() 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 11 
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to 

the Statement of Net Position 12 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 13 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 14 
Proprietary Fund 

Statement of Net Position 15-16 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 17 
Statement of Cash Flows 18-19 

Notes to Financial Statements 20-63 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 65 
Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund 66 
Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund 67 

Schedule of Changes in Total OP EB Liability and Related Ratios 68 
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability 69 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 70 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 71-72 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Justice System Funding Schedule - Collecting/Disbursing Entity 74 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

General Fund 
Revenues 75-76 
Expenditures 77-80 

(continued) 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

Page 

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (Continued) 
Combining Financial Statements 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Balance Sheets 81-84 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 85-88 

Schedule of Number of Utility Customers 89 
Comparative Departmental Analysis of Revenues and Expenses 

Utility Fund 90-91 
Schedule of Insurance in Force 92 
Schedule of Interest-Bearini4 Deposits 93-95 

INTERNAL CONTROL, COMPLIANCE, AND OTHER INFORMATION 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Goverinnent Auditing Standards 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findin2s 
Schedule of Findin2s and Responses 
ManaLiemenes Corrective Action Plan for Current Year FindinLis 

97-98 
99-100 

101-106 
1(17-11)8 

ii 



 

1201 Brashear Avenue, Suite 301 

Morgan City, LA 70380 

P 985-384-6264 

F 985-384-8140 
DSFCPAS.COM 

DARNALL SIKES 
& FREDERICK 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

OTHER LOCATIONS: 

Lafayette Eunice Abbeville 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Rodney Grogan, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Patterson, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Staternents 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Patterson, 
Louisiana (hereinafter, "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic fmancial statements as listed in the table 
of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Patterson, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2024, and 
the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the City, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fmancial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities fir the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or en-or, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a rnaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forery, intentional omissions, rnisrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment rnade by a reasonable user based on the financial staternents. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgrnent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our juk-ment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of tirne. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and tirnik of the audit, significant audit findiks, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary 
comparison inforrnation on pages 65 through 67, schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related 
ratios on page 68, schedule of employer's share of net pension liability on page 69, schedule of employer 
contributions on page 70, and notes to required supplernentary infonuation on pages 71 through 72 be 
presented to supplernent the basic financial staternents. Such inforrnation is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 



basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide 
anv assurance. 

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accowiting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements. The justice system funding schedule is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule is 
the responsibility of the City's management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedule has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the justice system funding schedule on page 74 is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information 
comprises the remaining supplernentary information as listed in the table of contents on pages 75 through 
95. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express 
an opinion or any fonn of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 28, 2025, 
on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, reulations, contracts, and aant agreements and other matters. The purpose 
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of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
cornpliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control over financial reporting or on cornpliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City's internal control 
over financial reporting and cornpliance. 

DarnaCC Sikes & Frederick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

Morgan City, Louisiana 
March 28, 2025 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2024 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Current Assets: 

   

Cash $ 944.125 $ 78.908 $ 1.023,033 
Interest-Bearing Deposits 1,950,709 146,404 2,097.113 
Investments, at Fair Value 1,019.375 363,067 1.382,442 
Receivables, Net 289,128 546,822 835.950 
Due from Other Governmental Units 92.209 - 92,209 
Internal Balances 2,239,687 (2,239,687) - 
Prepaid Insurance 30,276 27,267 57,543 

Total Cunent Assets 6,565,509 (1,077,2191 5,488,290 

Noncurrent Assets: 

   

Restricted Assets - 503,278 503,278 
Capital Assets: 

   

Land and Construction in Progess 472,266 737,076 1,209,342 
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net of accunmlated 

Depreciation and Amortization 8.158,189 7.225,935 15,384,124 
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,630,455 8,466,289 17,096,744 

Total Assets 15,195,964 7,389,070 22,585,034 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Deferred Out s of Resources Related to Pensions 910,162 286,345 1,196,507 

LIABLLITIES 

   

Cunent Liabilities: 

   

Cash Deficit 429,921 

 

429,921 
Accoums and Other Payables 465,528 429,469 894.997 
Accrued Interest Payable 23,518 

 

23,518 
Lease Liability, Current Portion 50.734 12,221 62,955 
Financed Purchase Obligation, Current Portion 65,770 

 

65,770 
Bonds Payable, Current Portion 470,000 

 

470,000 
Total Current Liabilities 1,505,471 441,690 1,947,161 

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restric ed Assets): 

   

Customers' Meter Deposits Payable 

 

503,278 503,278 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 

   

Net Pension Liability 1,763,617 870,316 2,633,933 
OPEB LiaUiGty 692,905 323,356 1,016,261 
Lease Liability, Net ot Curient Portion 151,961 19,989 171,950 
Financed Purchase Obligmion, Net of Current Porticm 23,777 

 

23,777 
Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion 3,215.000 

 

3.215,0(1(1 
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5,847,260 1,213,661 7,060,921 

Total Liabilities 7,352,731 2,158,629 9,511,360 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

   

Deferred Intlows of Resources Related to Pensions 113,891 21,521 135,412 
Deterred Inflows of Resources Related to Leases 9,171 

 

9,171 
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 123,062 21,521 144,583 

NET POSITION 

   

Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,653,213 7,930,801 12,584,014 
Restricted for: 

   

Debt Service 1,336,470 

 

1,336,470 
Other Purposes 2,291,390 503,278 2,794,668 

Unrestricted (Deficit) 349,260 (2,938,814) (2,589.554) 
Total Net Posi6on 8.630 333 5.495 265  $ 14.125.598  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Activities 

 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenues and 

Net Position 

Total 

Fees, Fines, Operatirr2 

and Charges Grants and 

Expenses for Services Contributions 

Changes in 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-Type 

Activities 

Governmental Activities 

     

General Government 

 

$ 1,196,072 $ 350,2.54 $ 9,322 $ (836,506) $ $ (836,506) 

Public Safety 

     

Police 

 

2,398,420 599,143 38,605 (1,760,672) 

 

(1,760,672) 

Fire 

 

132,755 55,500 (77,255) 

 

(77,255) 

Sanitation 

 

615,368 58.409 (556.959) 

 

(556,959) 

Streets and Drainage 

 

1,104,998 601,031 52,400 (451,567) 

 

(451,567) 

Culture and Recreation 

 

294,407 57.000 (237.407) 

 

(237,407) 

Interest and Fiscal Charges 

on Long Terni Debt 

 

120,864 (120,864) 

 

(120,864) 

Total Governmental Act 'ides 5,862,884 1,608.827 212.827 (4,041.230) 

 

(4,041,230) 

Business-Type Activities: 

     

utility Fund 

 

3,857 425 3,272,059 

 

(585,366) (585,366) 

Total 

 

9,720,309 4.880.886 212.827 (4,041.230) (585,366) (4,626,596) 

  

Cieneral Revenues• 

     

Taxes - 

     

Property Taxes 569,307 

 

569,307 

  

Sales and Use Taxes 2,682,595 

 

2,682,595 

  

Other taxes 260.574 

 

260,574 

  

Grants and Contributions Not Restricted 

to Specific Programs 

     

Federal Sources 30.551 

 

30,551 

  

Local Sources 8,647 

 

8,647 

  

Interest and Investment Earnings 107.546 

 

107,546 

  

Miscellaneous 195.271 40,866 236,137 

  

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (687) 

 

1687) 

  

Transfers (321,529) 321,529 - 

  

Total General Revenues, Losses and Transfers 3,532.275 362,395 3 894 670 

  

Change in Net Position (508,955) (222.)71) (731,926) 

  

Net Position (as restated) - Jtme 30. 2023 9,139.288 5,718,236 14,857,524 

  

Net Position - June 30, 2024 $ 8.630.333 $ 5.495.26$ $14.125.598 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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MAJOR FUNDS' DESCRIPTIONS 

GENERAL FUND  

To account for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not required to be accounted 
for in another fund. 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund  
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City's 3/4% sales and use tax. These taxes are dedicated 
to the construction, acquisition, extension, improvement, operation and maintenance of solid waste 
collection and disposal facilities. 

Ad valorem Tax Collection Fund  
To account for the receipt of the City's general alimony and debt service ad valorem tax millages. Taxes 
collected under the general alimony millage of 8.30 mills are transferred to the General Fund and available 
for use in general governmental operations. Taxes collected under the debt service millage of 12.20 mills 
are transferred to the Public Improvement Bond Fund and are restricted for use in retirement of the City's 
general obligation debt. 

ENTERPRISE FUND 

Utility Fund  
To account for the provision of gas, water, and sewerage services to residents of the City. All activities 
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and collection. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 

June 30, 2024 

 

General 

Sewerage and 
Solid Waste 
Sales Tax 

Ad Valorem 
Tax 

Collection 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 
ASSETS 

     

Cash $ 324,666 $ 436,308 S 183,151 $ 944,125 
Interest-Bearing I)eposits 866,634 190,423 8,114 885,538 1,950,709 
Investments, at Fair Value 

 

1,019,375 - - 1,019,375 
Receivables - 

     

Taxes 138,304 80,063 4,679 - 223,046 
Property Assessments 

 

- - 6,628 6,628 
Other 49,598 184 262 239 50,283 

Due from Other Governmental Units 92,209 - - - 92,209 
Due from Other Funds 1,488,587 58,394 262,567 990,568 2,800,116 
Advances to Other Funds 1,500,00(1 - - - 1,500,000 

Total Assets $4,135,332 $ 1.673.105 $ 711.930 $ 2.066.124 $ 8.586.491, 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

     

Liabilities 

     

Cash Deficit $ 429,921 - - $ - $ 429,921 
Accounts Payable 131,587 - 4,839 (800) 135,626 
Accrued Liabilities 319,902 - - - 329,902 
Unearned Revenues - - - 6,628 6,628 
Due to Other Funds 912,208 24,139 707,091 416,991 2,060,429 

Total Liabilities 1,803,618 24,139 711,930 422,819 2,962,5(16 

Fund Balances 

     

Nonspendable 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 
Restricted 

 

1,648,966 - 1,978,894 3,627,861) 
Unassigied (Deficit) 831,714 - - (335,589) 496,125 

Total Fund Balances 2,331,714 1,648,966 - 1,643,305 5,623,985 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $4,135,332 $ 1,673 105 $ 711 930 $ 2,066,124 $ 8 586 491  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2024 

Total fund balances for governmental funds at June 30, 2024 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Net Position is different because: 

Property assessments in governmental funds are not considered 
financial resources until collected. 

Expenses paid diu-ing the year but attributable to periods after the 
current year (primarily insurance) are recorded as prepaid expenses 
in the statement of net position. 

Deferred outflows of resources related to net pension liability are 

not available resources and, therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 

resources and therefore, are not reported in the flinds. 
Cost of capital assets 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Receivables from the lease of certain property are not available to 
pay for current year expenditures and are deferred in the fund 
financial statements. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and certificates payable in the 
current period, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. 

Net pension liability 
OP EB liability 

Lease liability 

Financed purchase obligation 
Bonds payable 
Accrued interest payable 

Deferred inflows of resources related to net pension liability and 
leases receivable are not payable from current expendable 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds 

Total net position of governmental activities at June 30, 2024 

 

$ 5,623,985 

 

6,628 

 

30,276 

 

910,162 

15,957,385 

 

(7,32630) 8,630,455 

 

9,171 

(1,763,617) 

 

(692,905) 

 

(2(Y2,695) 

 

(89,547) 

 

(3,685,000) 

 

(23,518) (6,457,282) 

 

(123,062) 

 

S 8,630,333  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

General 

Sewerage and 

Sohd Waste 

Sales Tax 

Ad Valorem 

Tax 

Collection 

Other 

Govermnental 

Funds 

Total 

Govermnental 

Funds 

Revenues: 

     

Taxes $1,932,932 $ 1,010,237 $ 569,307 $ - $ 3,512,476 
Licenses ancl Pemiits 201,840 

  

- 201,840 

Intergovernmental 263,701 

  

55,500 319,201 

Charges for Services 807,843 

  

- 807,843 

Fines and Forfeits 426,046 

  

- 426,046 
Investment Earnings 21,136 52,715 

 

- 73,851 

Miscellaneous 245,927 

 

23,468 16,389 285,784 

Total Revenues 3,899,425 1,062,952 592,775 71,889 5,627,041 

Expenclitures: 

     

CulTent - 

     

General Governrnent 1,169,848 

 

8,222 350 1,178,420 

Public Safety: 

     

Police 2,315,354 

  

- 2,315,354 

Fire 63,308 

  

11,294 74,602 

Sanitation 615,368 

  

- 615,368 

Culture ancl Recreation 215,425 

  

- 215,425 
Streets ancl Drainage 926,502 

  

- 926,502 

Capital Outlay 180,678 

  

- 180,678 

Debt Service - 

     

Principal Retirement 151,666 

  

455,000 606,666 

Interest ancl Fiscal Charges 41,909 

  

86,060 127 969 
Total Expenclitures 5 680 058 

 

8 "2 552,704 6,240,984 

Excess (Deficiency) of 
Revenues Over Expenditures (1,78(1,633) 1,062,952 584,553 (480,815) (613,943) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

Proceeds from Capital Lease 107,983 

  

- 107,983 

Operating Transfers [n 1,424,191 

  

800,864 2,225,055 

Operatinti Transfers Out (151,489) (1,224,098) (889,18(1) (281,817) (2,546,584) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,380,685 (1,224,098j (889,1801 519,047 (213,546) 

Net Chantie in Fund Balances (399,948) (161,146) (3(14,627) 38,132 (827,489) 

Fund Balances, Beginning (as restated) 2.731,662 1,810,112 304,627 1,605,073 6.451,474 

Fund Balances, Ending $2,331,714 $ 1,648,966 

 

$ 1,643,305  $ 5,623,985  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation of the Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Total net changes in fund balances at June 30, 2024, per Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement 
of Activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay which is considered expenditures on Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 

Depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 

Proceeds from capital leases are considered as an other financing source 
on the fund statements 

Some revenues reported in the Statement of Activi les, such as interest 
on lease receivable, do not provide current fmancial resources and 
are not reported as revenues in governmental funds. 

Governmental funds do not report loss on disposition of capital assets. 

Bond principal repayments and capital lease payments are considered as an 
expenditure on the fund statement 

Effect of recording OPEB expense 

Effects of recording net pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows of 
resources related to net pension liability 

Decrease in pension expense 
Nonemployer pension contribution revenue 

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities, such as accnied 
interest expense, do not require the use of cuiTent financial resources 
and are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 

Total changes in net position at June 30, 2024 per statement of activities 

$ (827,489) 

182,184 
(494,350) 

(107,983) 

183 

(687) 

606,666 

245,677 

(182,527) 
48,921 

20,450 

$ (508 955) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Utility 
Fund 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

 

Cash S 78,908 
Interest-Bearing Deposits 146,404 
Investments 363,067 
Receivables 

 

Customer Accounts Receivable, Net 540,783 
Accrued Interest Receivable 76 

Other 5,963 
Due from Other Funds 92,442 
Prepaid Insurance 27,267 

Total Current Assets 1,254,910 

Noncurrent Assets: 

 

Restricted Assets - 

 

Cash 363,0()3 
Interest-bearing Deposits 140,275 

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 7,963,011 
Total Noncurrent Assets 8,466,289 

Total Assets 9,721,199 

DefelTed Outflows of Resources From Pensions 286,345 

(Continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position (Continued) 
Proprietary Fund 

June 30, 2024 

Utility 
Fund 

LIABILITIES 

Current Liabilities: 

 

Accounts Payable 236,196 

Accrued Liabilities 193,273 

Lease Liability, Current Portion 12,221 
Due to Other Funds 832,129 

Total Current Liabilities 1,273,819 

Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets): 

 

Customers' Meter Depos ts Payable 503,278 

Noncurrent Liabilities: 

 

Lease Liability, Net of CuiTent Portion 19,989 
Advances From Other Funds 1,500,000 
OPEB Liability 323,356 
Net Pension Liability 870,316 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 2,713,661 

Total Liabilities 4,490,758 

Deferred Inflows of Resources From Pensions 21,521 

NET POSITION 

 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 7,930,801 

Restricted 503,278 
Unrestricted (Deficit) (2,938,814) 

Total Net Position S 5,495,265 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Utility 

Fund 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges for Services - 

 

Gas Sales and Services $ 817,819 

Water Sales and Services 1,358,377 

Sewerage Service 840,555 
Delinquent CharLies 84,161 
Commissions, Transfers and Reconnections 34,034 

Miscellaneous 137,113 

Total Operating Revenues 3,272,059 

Operating Expenses: 

 

Administrative 894,532 

Gas Department 942,730 
Water Department 1,200,163 

SeweraLie Department 542,319 
Depreciation and Amortization 277,681 

Total Operating Expenses 3,857,425 

Operating Loss (585,366) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

 

Interest Income 29,487 
Nonernployer Contributions to Pension Plan 30,593 
Miscellaneous Expense (4,753) 

Interest and Fiscal Charges (14,461) 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 40,866 

Loss Before Transfers (544,500) 

Transfers Out (126,584) 
Transfers In 448,113 

Chan2e in Net Position (222,971) 

Net Position, Beginn g (as restated) 5,718,236 

Net Position, Endimz $ 5,495,265  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Utility 
Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 

 

Receipts from Customers $ 3,337,163 

Payments to Suppliers (2,468,273) 
Payments to Employees (1,057,367) 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (188,477) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financini4 Activities: 

 

Payments from Other Funds 192,368 
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financ Activities 192,368 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities: 

 

Acquisition of Constniction in ProD-ess (623,265) 
Payments on Lease Liability (11,525) 

Interest on Lease Liability (2,649) 
Payments on Financed Purchase Obligations (6,297) 
Interest on Financed Purchase Obligations (11,812) 

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (655,548) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activ t es: 

 

Maturities of Investments and Interest-Bearin2 Deposits 687,129 

Purchase of Investments and Interest-Bearing Deposits (188,068) 
Interest on Investments 12,501 

Net Cash Provided by InvestinLiActivities 511,562 

Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents (140,095) 

Cash and Equivalents, Beginn 680,617 

Cash and Equivalents, Endin2 540,522 

(Continued) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Staternent of Cash Flows (Continued) 
Proprietary Fund 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Utility 

Fund 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities: 

 

Operating Loss S (585,366) 

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Used by Operatin2 Activities: 

 

Depreciation and Amortization 277,681 
Pension Expense 27,720 

OP EB Expense (116,604) 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

 

Accounts Receivable 20,021 

Other Receivables 786 
Prepaid Insurance (12,797) 

Accounts Payable 110,846 

Accnied Liabilities 75,532 
Customer Meter Deposits 13,704 

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities S (188,4771 

Reconciliation of Cash and Equivalents to the Statement of Net Position: 

 

Cash and Equivalents, Beginning 

 

Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits - Unrestricted $ 878,172 

Less: lnterest-Bearing Deposits that are Not Cash Equivalents (546,854) 

Cash - Restricted 349,299 

Total Cash and Equivalents 680,617 

Cash and Equivalents, Ending 

 

Cash and Interest-Bearing Deposits - Unrestricted 225,312 

Less: Interest-Bearin2 Deposits that are Not Cash Equivalents (47,793) 

Cash - Restricted 363,003 

Total Cash and Equivalents 540,522 

Net Decrease in Cash and Equivalents S (140,095) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Patterson ("City") was incorporated March 11, 1907, under the provisions of the Lawrason Act. 
The City operated under a Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of government until December 31, 1992 at 
which time the City adopted a Home Rule Charter and now operates under an elected Mayor-Council, 
administrative-legislative form of governtnent. The City's operations include police and fire protection, 
streets and drainage, parks and recreation, residential waste collection services, certain social services and 
general administration services. The City owns and operates an enterprise fund that provides gas, water, 
and sewer services. 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of The City of Patterson ("City") have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. The 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the 
accompanying basic financial statements conform to the accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America applicable to state and local governments. Such 
accounting and reporting procedures also conform to the requirements of Louisiana Revised 
Statute 24:513, the Louisiana Governmental Audit Guide, and to the industry audit guide, 
Audits of State and Local Governmental Units. 

The following is a summaty of certain significant accounting policies of the City. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, Thc Financial Reporting 

Entity, as arnended, established criteria for determining which component units should be 
considered part of the City for financial reporting purposes. The basic criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial accountability. The GASB has 
set criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria include: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and 

a. Tlie ability of the City to impose its will on tliat organization andlor 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose 
specific financial burdens on the City. 

2. Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally 
dependent on the City. 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if 
the data of the organization is not included because of the nature of or significance of the 
relationship. 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the City has no component units. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Related Organizations  

A related organization is an entity for which the primary government is not financially 
accountable even though the primary government may provide facilities and some financing or 
appoint a voting majority of the organization's governing board. Based on the foregoing 
criteria, the following organizations are considered related oruanizations to the City and have 
not been included in the reporting entity: 

• Housin,g Authority of the City of Patterson - The Housing Authority of the City of Patterson 
is governed by a board appointed by the management of the City. However, the City's 
accountability for the housing authority does not extend beyond making the appointments. 

• Patterson Volunteer Fire Department - The Patterson Volunteer Fire Department is 
governed by a group of volunteer citizens. The City provides facilities and some financing 
to the Volunteer Fire Department, but the Department is not fiscally dependent on the City. 
However, the City includes revenues received and expenditures paid for the Volunteer Fire 
Department as part of its general fwid. 

Joint Ventures 

A joint venture is a legal entity or other organization that results from a contractual arrangement 
and that is owned, operated, or governed by two or rnore participants as a separate and specific 
activity subject to joint control in which the participants retain (a) an ongoing financial interest 
or (b) an ongoing financial responsibility. The City has entered into joint venture arrangements 
with other governmental entities for the operation of the Wards 5 and 8 Joint Sewer 
Commission. See Note 18 for further discussion of the City's relationship with the Wards 5 
and 8 Joint Sewer Cornrnission. 

Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWES) 

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the City as 
a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity. The statements distinguish between 
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or 
services. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or fimction and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular fimction. Program 
revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered 
by the programs, and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational 
or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an 
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their 
intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating cornpliance with finance-
related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained 
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. 

The various funds of the City are classified into two categories: governmental and proprietary. 
The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise fwids, each 
displayed in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single 
column. A fiind is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the 
following criteria: 

a. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or 
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that 
category or type; and 

b. Total assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governrnental or 
enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental 
and enterprise funds combined. 

The major funds of the City are described below: 

Governmental Funds:  

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund 

This fund is used to account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the City's 34% sales and use 
tax. These taxes are dedicated to the construction, acquisition, extension, improvement, 
operation and maintenance of solid waste collection and disposal facilities. 

Ad Valorem Tax collection Fund 

This fund is used to account for the receipt and distribution of the City's ad valorern taxes 
collected under its general alimony (8.30) and debt service (12.20) millages. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Proprietary Funds:  

Enterprise Fund 

The enterprise fund is used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a 
manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs (expenses) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis 
be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has 
decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income 
is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or 
other purposes. The enterprise fund reported as a major fund in the fund financial statement is 
the Utility Fund. 

The Utility Fund is used to account for the provision of gas, water and sewer services to the 
residents of the City and certain unincorporated areas surrounding the City. All activities 
necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, includirw but not limited to 
administration, operations, maintenance, financing and related debt service, and billing and 
collection of user charges. 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded within the 
various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded 
regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the -current financial resources'.  measurement focus or the 
"economic resources'.  measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All govenunental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. 
Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance 
sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable 
financial resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their 
measure of available spendable financial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietaly fwid utilizes an "economic resources." measurement focus. The 
accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating 
income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial position, and cash flows. 
All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities 
are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)  

Basis qf Accounting 

In the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent), and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. 
The Statement of Activities present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net 
position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which 
they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incut-red, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The accounts of the City are in confonnity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. The City considers property tax revenue 
as available in the year following the assessment when the majority of the taxes are actually 
collected. Other major revenues susceptible to accrual are earned grant revenues, other 
intergovernmental revenues and interest revenue. The City reports unearned revenue on its 
balance sheet. Unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the 
"measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current period. 

Unearned revenues also arise when resources are received by the City prior to the City incurring 
qualified expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, 
or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed 
from the balance sheet and revenue is recognized. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures are recorded only when payment 
is due. 

The proprietary fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability 
is incurred or economic asset used. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statement of net position, cash and interest-bearing deposits include all 
demand accounts, savings accounts, and time deposits of the City. Interest-bearing deposits are 
stated at cost, which approximates market. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the proprietary' fwid considers all highly liquid 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash 
equivalents. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Investments 

Under state law, the City may deposit funds with a fiscal agent organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States. 
The City may invest in United States bonds, treasuty notes and bills, government backed 
agency securities, or certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under Louisiana 
1aw and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. In addition, local governments in 
Louisiana are authorized to invest in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP), a 
nonprofit corporation formed by the State Treasurer and organized under the laws of the State 
of Louisiana, which operates a local goveniment investment pool. 

Investments are stated at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. If quoted market 
prices are not available, fair value is estimated by determining the fair value of investments 
possessing similar yield, maturity, and repayment and risk characteristics. At June 30, 2024, 
there were no investments whose fair values were required to be estimated. 

For the purpose of the proprietary fund statement of cash flows, - cash and cash equivalents.' 
include all demand and savings accounts, and certificates of deposit or short-term investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less. 

Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that 
may result in amounts owed between funds. These receivables and payables related to goods 
and services type transactions are classified as "due from other funds" or "due to other funds" 
on the balance sheet. Short-tenn interfund loans are reported as "interfund receivables and 
payables." Long-term interfund loans are reported as -advances from and to other funds." 
Interfund receivables and payables between fiinds within governmental activities are 
eliminated in the statement of net position. 

Receivables 

In the government-wide statetnents, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and 
not yet received. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and 
use taxes and amounts due from others (including other governments) for goods or services 
provided for which payment has not yet been received. Business-type activities report 
customer's utility service receivables as their major receivables. Uncollectible utility service 
receivables are recognized as bad debts through the establishment of an allowance account at 
the time infonnation becomes available which would indicate the collectability of the particular 
receivable. The allowance for uncollectible customers' utility receivables was S209,696 at June 
30, 2024. Unbilled utility service receivables resulting from utility services rendered between 
the date of meter reading and billing and the end of the month, are recorded at year-end. The 
estimate for unbilled utility service receivables at June 30, 2024 was S46,434. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restricted Assets  

Restricted assets include cash and interest-bearing deposits that are legally restricted as to their 
use. The City's restricted assets are related to its utility customer meter deposits. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastnicture assets, are reported 
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if 
historical is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair 
market value at the date of donation. The City maintains a threshold level of $1,000 or more 
for capitalizing capital assets. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the 
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. 
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line rnethod 
of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings 40 years 
Infrastnicture 20-50 years 
Utility system and improvements 25 years 
Equ ipment 5-7 years 

In the fund fmancial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are 
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital 
assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-
wide statements. 

Long-term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of 
fund net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
bonds using the straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount. Long-term debt consists of general obligation bonds payable, net pension 
liabilities and compensated absences payable. 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Long-term Debt (Continued)  

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as expenditures. 

Compensated Absences 

Vacation and sick leave are recorded as expenditures of the period in which paid. Vacation 
credits are earned by employees range from 5-22 days per year depending upon length of 
service. Vacation must be taken in the year earned and cannot be carried over. Sick leave does 
not accumulate and is not payable at termination of employment. 

Pensions 

The City applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting mid Financial 
Reportin,g for Pensions. This pronouncernent requires the City to calculate and recognize a net 
pension liability at June 30, 2024. For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the Municipal Employees Retirement 
System (MERS) and Municipal Police Employees Retirement System (MPERS), and changes 
in the retirement systems' fiduciary net positions have been determined on the sarne basis as 
they are reported by the respective systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 13 for fiirther details. 

Net Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 

The City applies GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers 
lbr Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. This pronouncement requires the City to 
calculate and recognize a net other post-employment benefit (OPEB) obligation at June 30, 
2024. See Note 14 for further details. 

Leases 

The City applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB Statement No. 87 
enhances the relevance and consistency of information of the goveniment's leasing activities. 
It establishes requirements for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are financings 
of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right to use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources. See Note 10 for further details. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements  

The City applies the provisions of GASB Statement No. 96„S'ubscripion-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements (SBITA5). The objective of this Staternent is to better meet the 
information needs of financial statement users by establishing uniforrn accounting and financial 
reporting requirements for SBITAs, improving the comparability of financial statements 
among governments that have entered into SBITAs, and enhancing the understandability, 
reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITAs. 

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial stateinent eleinent, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consurnption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City 
reported deferred outflows of resources related to pensions. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will soinetimes report a separate section 
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement eleinent, deferred inflows 
of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. The City reported deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions and leases receivable. 

See Note 13 for additional information related to deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions. 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

In the governrnent-wide statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accuinulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any 
bonds, inortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assets. 

b. Restricted — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by ( 1) 
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional, provisional or enabling legislation. 

c. Unrestricted — All other net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted." or 
net investment in capital assets." 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements 

Proprietary fund equity is classified the sarne as in the government-wide statements. 
Governmental fiind equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance for the City's 
governmental funds is displayed depicting the relative strength of the spending constraints 
placed on the purposes for which resources can be used. In the governmental fiind financial 
statements, fttnd balances are classified as follows: 

a. Nonspendable — arnounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

b. Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of 
other governments. 

c. Committed — amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action of the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision-
making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or 
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by City Council rnernbers. 

d. Assigned — amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or 
committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City's 
adopted policy, only the Mayor may assign amounts for specific purposes. 

e. Unassigned — all other spendable amounts. 

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund 
balance is available, the City considers the restricted funds to have been spent first. When an 
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are 
available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then 
assigned fitnds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless City Council members or the 
Mayor has provided otherwise in its comminnent or assignment actions. 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and 
expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or investing 
activities. 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses (Continued)  

Expenditures/Expenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for both 
governmental and business-type activities. 

In the governrnental funds' financial statements, expenditures are classified by character. In the 
proprietary fiind financial statements, expenditures are classified as operating or non-operating. 

In the fund financial statements, govermnental funds report expenditures of financial resources. 
Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

Interfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are classified as 
interfund transfers. For the purposes of the staternent of activities, all interfund transfers 
between individual governmental funds have been eliminated. 

Capitalization of Interest Expense 

It is the policy of the City to capitalize material amounts of interest resulting from borrowings 
in the course of the construction of capital assets. 

Use of Estirnates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of Arnerica requires managernent to rnake estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Subsequent Events 

The City has evaluated subsequent events through March 28, 2025, the date the financial 
staternents were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 CASH, INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Interest-bearing Deposits 

Under state law, the City may deposit fiinds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws 
of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United 
States. The City rnay invest in certificates and time deposits of state banks organized under 
Louisiana law and national banks having principal offices in Louisiana. 
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NOTE 2 CASH, INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Interest-bearing Deposits (Continued)  

At June 30, 2024, the City has cash and interest-bearing deposits (book balances) totaling 
$3,193,503, as follows: 

Demand deposits $ 956,115 

Money market accounts and tirne deposits 2,237,388 

Total $ 3..193,503 

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits, 
(or the resulting bank balances) tnust be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the 
federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent 
bank. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or 
custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Deposit balances (bank balances) at 
June 30, 2024, were secured as follows: 

Bank balances 

Federal deposit insurance 
Pledtzed securities 

Total federal deposit insurance and pledged securities 

Excess 

$ 4,213,856 

500,000 
6,283,984 
6,783,984 

$ 2.570,128 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
financial institution, the City's deposits may not be recovered or the City will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not 
have a policy to tnonitor or attetnpt to reduce exposure to custodial credit risk. At June 30, 
2024, deposits in the arnount of $3,713,856 were exposed to custodial credit risk since the 
deposits are uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution's trust 
department or agent but not in the City's name. 

Investments 

The City's policy does not further lirnit its investrnent choices beyond the restrictions imposed 
by state statute. State law allows the investment in direct United States Treasury obligations, 
bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal 
agencies or U.S. Government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored; direct security 
repurchase agreements of any federal book entiy only securities guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government; time certificates of deposit of any bank domiciled or having a branch office in 
the State of Louisiana; savings account or shares of certain savings and loan associations and 
savings banks; certain accounts of federally or state chartered credit unions; certain mutual or 
trust fund institutions; certain guaranteed investment contracts; and investrnent grade 
cornrnercial paper of domestic United States corporations. 
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NOTE 2 CASH, INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Investments (Continued) 

At June 30, 2()24, the City had the following investments and rnaturities (in years): 

Description Category 
Interest 

Rate 
Fair 

Value 
Less Than 

1 Year 
Governmental Activities: 

    

United States Government-

Securities Fund N/A Various $ 1,019,375 $ 1,019,375 
Business-Type Activities: 

    

United States Government-

Securities Fund N/A Various 363,067 363,067 

   

$ 1,382,442 1,382,442  

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the 
City will not be able to recover the value of its investment. The City's investment policy 
conforrns to state law, as described above, which has no provision for custodial credit risk. 
Investments in funds should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not evidenced 
by securities that exist in physical or book-entry form. The City's investment is with the fund, 
not the securities that make up the fund; therefore, no disclosure in required. 

Concentration of credit risk relates to the amount of investments in any one entity. The City's 
investments are excluded for the 5 percent disclosure requirement. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that changes in n terest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investrnent. The City's investment policy conforms to state law, which does not 
include a policy that limits investment rnaturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair 
value losses arising from increasing interest rates. At June 30, 2024, the City had no 
investments with future maturities in excess of one year. 

Credit risk is defined as the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
fulfill its obligations. The City invested only in obligations of federal or state agencies which 
are not rated. The type of investment allowed by state law ensures that the City is not exposed 
to credit risk. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, the City recognizes the net increase (decrease) in 
the fair value of its investments. For the year ended June 30, 2024, the fair value of the City's 
investments increased S64,685. This amount takes into account all changes in fair value 
(including purchases and sales) that occurred during the year. 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 2 CASH, INTEREST-BEARING DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Fair Value Measurements 

The City measures and records its investments using fair value guidelines established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-tiered fair value 
hierarchy as follows: 

• Level 1 — quoted prices for identical investments in active markets 
• Level 2 — observable inputs other than quoted market prices 
• Level 3 — unobservable inputs 

The City's investments in mutual funds are measured using quoted prices for identical 
investments in active markets (Level 1 inputs). The investments in mutual funds are valued 
using quoted market prices of the underlying investment on a recurring basis. The City's 
investments are redeemable on demand. 

NOTE 3 AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes 
are levied by the City in September or October and are actually billed to taxpayers in November 
or December. Billed taxes become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. The City bills 
and collects its own property taxes using the assessed values detennined by the tax assessor of 
St. Mary Parish. City property tax revenues are budgeted in the year billed. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, taxes of 20.50 mills were levied on property with assessed 
valuations totaling S28,834,287 and were dedicated as follows: 

General corporate purposes 8.30 Ill ills 

Debt service 1 7' 

Total taxes levied were $591,103. The atnount of taxes receivable (net of allowance for 
uncollectible taxes of S25,275) at June 30, 2024, was $4,679. 

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES 

Receivable balances at June 30, 2024, are as follows: 

  

Governmental Activities 

   

General 

Sewerage and 
Solid Waste 
Sales Tax 

Ad Valorem 
Tax 

Collection 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

Total 
Ciovernmental 

Funds 

Taxes $ 138,304 $ 80,063 $ 4,679 $ - $ 223,046 
Property assessments - - 

  

6,628 6,628 
Other 

      

Franchise fees 49,157 - 

   

49,157 
Lease receivable 9,171 - 

   

9,171 
Accrued interest 91 184 

  

239 514 
Other 350 - 262 

 

- 612 
Total receivable 197,073  80 247  4,941  

 

6 867 $ 289.128  
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NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Utility Fund 

Customer accounts 750,479 

Less: allowance for uncollectibles (209,696) 
Net customer accounts receivable 540,783 

Other receivables 6,039 

Receivables, net 546,822  

NOTE 5 DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

Amounts due from other governmental units at June 30, 2024, consisted of the following: 

Govenimental Activities - 
Prisoner maintenance fees due from the St. Mary Parish Government $ 46,928 
Occupational licenses fees due from state and parish governments 22,249 
Annual PILOT payment due from the Patterson Housing Authority 14,031 
Prisoner maintenance fees due from the State of Louisiana 7,078 
Beer taxes due from the State of Louisiana 878 
Video poker receipts due from the State of Louisiana 517 
Other miscellaneous fees due from various governrnents 528 

 

$ 92,209 

NOTE 6 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Receivables and Payables  

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2024, consisted of the following: 

 

lnterfund 
Receivables 

Interfund 
Payables 

Govemniental Activities: 

  

General Fund $ 1,488,587 $ 912,208 
Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund 58,394 24,139 
Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund 262,567 707,091 
Other nonmajor governmental funds 990,568 416,991 

Business-type Activities: 

  

Utility Fund 92,442 832,129 
Total S 2,892,558 $ 2,89?,558 

Advances to/from other funds: 

  

General Fund $ 1,500,000 $ 
Utility Fund 

 

1,500,000 
Total advances to/from other funds S 1.500.001) $ 1,500,000 
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NOTE 6 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

Interfund receivables and payables arise as a result of transactions between funds when there 
is an expectation that the disbursing fund will be repaid or reimbursed by the recipient fund. 

Operating transfers  

Transfers between funds for the year ended June 30, 2024, were: 

 

Transfers In Transfers Out 
Governmental Activities: 

  

General Fund $ 1,424,191 $ 151,489 
Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund 

 

1,224,1)98 
Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund 

 

889,180 
Other nonmajor governmental funds 800,864 281,817 

Business-type Activities: 

  

Utility Fund 448,113 126,584 
Total $ 226732 168  L  22 6732 168  

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect 
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use unrestricted 
revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds 
in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

NOTE 7 RESTRICTED ASSETS 

Restricted assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2024. 

Customers' deposits $ 503,278 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for tlie year ended June 30, 2024, was as 
follows: 

 

Balance 
6/30/2023 Additions Dele ons 

Balance 
6/30/2024 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land 462,326 9,940 $ - $ 472,266 
Construction in progess - - - - 

Total capital assets not beim; depreciated 462,326 9,940 

 

472,266 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Buildings 3,216,792 

 

- 3,216,792 
Improvements other than buildings 382,434 50,090 8,320 424,204 
Equipment, furniture & fixtures 4,176,816 14,171 26,429 4,164,558 
Infrastnicture 7,420,745 

 

- 7,420,745 
Total capital assets benfg depreciated 15,196,787 64,261 34,749 15,226,299 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    

Buildings (1,681,120) (80,626) - (1,761,746) 
Improvements other than buildings (57,875) (19,537) (8,320) (69,092) 
Equipment, furniture & tixtures (3,242,086) (162,289) (25,742) (3,378,633) 
Infrastructure (1,861,277) (189.805) - (2,051.082) 

Total accumulated depreciation (6,842,358) (452,257) (34,062) (7,260,553) 

Total capital assets betng depreciated, net 8,354,419 (387,996) 687 7,965,746 

Lease assets being iunortized: 

    

Vehicles 150,837 107,983 - 258,820 
Less accumulated amortization tor: 

    

Vehicles (24,284) (42.093) - (66.377) 

Total lease assets being amortized, net 126,553 65,890 - 192,443 

Governmental activities, 
capital assets, net L  8.943.308   L  (312.166) $ 687 $ 8,630.455 

Depreciation expense in the amount of $452,257 and amortization expense of $42,093 was 
charged to governmental activities, of which $83,395 relates to the City's financed purchases. 

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General government $ 62,561 

Police 58,307 
Fire 51,440 

Streets and draina.qc 200,967 

Culture and recreation 78,982 

Total Depreciation Expense $ 45?257 
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NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Capital assets activity for the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2024, was as 
follows: 

 

Balance 

6/30/2023 Additions Deletions 

Balance 

6/30/2024 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

    

Land $ 107,200 $ - $ 

 

107,200 

Construct on in proiffess 6,611 623,265 - 629,S76 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 113,811 623,265 

 

737,076 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

    

Gas distribution system 2,070,950 - 

 

2,070,950 

Water distribution system 9,588,422 - 

 

9,588,422 

Sewer treatment system 5,9/1,485 - 

 

5,9/1,485 

Machinery and equipment 231,355 - 14,200 217,155 

Total capital assets being depreciated 17,812,212 - 14,200 17,798,012 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

    

Gas distribution system (2,025,449) (14,535) 

 

(2,039,984) 

Water distribution system (3,383,74(1) (173,397) 

 

(3.557,137) 

Sewer treatment system (4,724,544) (76,6S9) 

 

(4,801,233) 

Machinery and equipment (217,381) (974) (14,20(1) (204,155) 

Total acctmmlated depreciation (10,351,114) (265,595) (14,200) (10,602,509) 

Total capital assets being deprec ated, net 7,461,098 (265,595) 

 

7,195,503 

Lease assets being amortized: 

    

Vehicles 54,605 - 

 

54,605 

Less accumulated amortization for: 

    

Vehicles (12,087) (12,086) 

 

(24.173) 

Total lease assets being amortized, net 42,518 (12,(186) - 30,432 

Business-type activities, 

capital assets, net $ 7.617.427 $ 345.584 $  

 

$ 7.963.011 

Depreciation expense in the amount of $265,595 and amortization expense in the amount of 
$12,086 was charged to business type activities, of which $3,815 relates to the City's financed 
purchases. 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Administrative 974 

Gas 14,535 

Water 173,397 

Sewer 76,689 

Total Depreciation Expense S 265,595 
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NOTE 9 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 
30, 2024. 

Govennnental Activities: 

Balance at 

July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 

June 30, 2024 

Due Within 

One Year 

General Obligation and 

Lunited Tax Bonds $ 4,140,000 

 

455,000 3,685,00(1 $ 470,000 

Financed purchase obligations 2(16,913 

 

117,366 89,547 65,770 

Other postemployment benetits 938,5£2 

 

245,677 692,905 

 

Net pension liability 1.349.764 482.763 68.910 1,763,617 

 

Total $ 6,635,259 $ 482,763 $ 886 953 $ 6 231 069 $ 535 77() 

 

Balance at 

  

Balance at Due Within 

Business-Type Activities: July 1, 2023 Add ions Reductions June 30, 2024 One Year 

Financed purchase obligations 6.297 $ 6,297 

  

Other postemployment benetits 439,960 

 

116,604 323,356 

 

Net pension liability 985.658 

 

115,342 870,316 

 

Total $ 1,431,915  $ $ 238,243  $ 1,193,672  

 

Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable outstanding at June 30, 2024, is comprised of the following individual issues: 

General obligation and public improvement sales tax bonds 

$5,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020, due in annual 
installments of S255,000 to $340,000 through March 1, 2032; interest at 
1.90 percent per annum, secured by levy and collection of ad valorem tax 

$1,000,000 Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2015, due in annual instalhnents 
of $85,000 to $95,000 through March 1, 2027; interest at 1.925 to 2.35 
percent; secured by levy and collection of ad valorem taxes 

$1,000,000 Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2018, due in annual instalhnents 

of $100,000 to $115,000 through May 1, 2028; interest at 3.02 percent; 
secured by levy and collection of ad valorem taxes 

$570,000 Limited Tax Bonds, Series 2021, due in annual installments 

of $5,000 to $90,000 through March 1, 2033; interest at 2.0 percent; 
secured by levy and collection of ad valorem taxes 

Total general obligation and public improvement sales tax bonds 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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NOTE 9 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Bonds Payable (Continued) 

The annual requirements to amortize bonds payable outstanding are as follows as of June 30, 
2024: 

Year Ending 
General 

Obhgation Bonds 
Limited 

T ax Bonds Total 

 

June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 
2025 $ 270,000 $ 45,885 $ 200,000 $ 30,175 S 470,000 $ 76,060 
2026 275,000 40,755 205,000 24,927 480,000 65,682 
2027 285,000 35,530 210,00(1 19,546 495,000 55,076 
2028 295,000 30,115 205,000 13,895 500,000 44,01(1 
2029 305,000 24,510 90,000 8,685 395,00(1 33,195 

2030-2033 985,000 37,905 360,000 17,370 1,345,1)0(1 55,275 

 

$2,415,000  S 214,700 S 1,270,000 $ 114,598  S3,685,000 $ 329,298  

Covenants/Restrictions: 

The various bond indentures contain significant limitations and restrictions as to annual debt 
service requirements, maintenance of and flow of monies through various restricted accounts, 
and minimum amounts to be maintained in various sinking fiinds. Resolutions concerning 
dedication of sales tax proceeds specify restrictions as to how the funds may be expended. The 
City is in compliance with all such significant limitations and restrictions at June 30, 2024. 

Assets in assessment certificates funds are restricted for the retirement of any outstanding 
principal and interest remaining on the certificate's obligations. Assets remaining in these fiinds 
after the retirement of the outstanding obligations may be used only for the repair and 
maintenance of the streets improved from the proceeds of the original certificate issue. 

Financed Purchases 

The City has entered into financing agreements for the acquisitions of police and utility 
equipment as follows: 

Police Vehicles: 

In 2019, the City entered into a financing agreement for the acquisition of six new police units. 
The acquisition cost was $241,652 and was financed with ten semi-annual payments of 
principal and interest totaling S54,353 per year. The final payment towards tliis agreement was 
made during the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Street Equipment: 

In 2021, the City entered into a financing agreement for the acquisition of an excavator. The 
acquisition cost was 558,190 and was financed with forty-eight monthly payments of principal 
and interest totaling $16,068 per year. 
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NOTE 9 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Financed Purchases (Continued) 

Other Equipment: 

In 2021, the City entered into a financing agreement for the acquisition of a mower for the 
streets department, in-car cameras and laptops for the police department, and desktop 
computers for its administrative department. The acquisition cost was $63,655 and was 
financed with eight semi-annual payments of principal and interest totaling $17,118 per year. 

In 2022, the City entered into a financing agreement for the acquisition of a backhoe, video 
surveillance systems installed at various City properties, computers and printers for the 
administrative and police departments, and radio equipment for the police, fire and utility 
departments. The acquisition was $180,335 and was financed with eight semi-annual payments 
of principal and interest totaling $48,29 l per year. 

Utility Vehicles: 

In 2019, the City entered into a financing agreement for the acquisition of two utility trucks. 
The acquisition cost was $57,229 and was financed with ten semi-annual payments of principal 
and interest totaling $12,872 per year. The final payment towards this agreement was made 
during the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Future maturities of the City's financed purchase obliations are as follows: 

Governmental 
Activities 

Fiscal Year End 
Street 

Equipment 
Other 

Equipment 
2025 2,678 $ 65,409 
2026 

 

24,146 
Less: Amount representing interest (78) (2,608) 

Present value of future minimum payments 2.600 86.947 

In the fund financial statements, the acquisition costs were reported as capital outlay with 
corresponding capital lease proceeds reported as an "other financing source". The government-
wide financial statements report the acquisitions as a capital asset in the governmental activities 
with the corresponding obligations reported as a liability. 
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NOTE 9 CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Financed Purchases (Continued) 

At June 30, 2024, assets and related amortization under financed purchase obligations are as 
follows: 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

Vehicles - fire tnick $ 348,329 $ 

 

Vehicles - police vehicles 241,652 

  

Vehicles - utility vehicles 

  

57,230 
Equipment - excavator 58,191 

  

Equipment - backhoe 82,806 

  

Equipment - lawn mower 12,150 

  

Equipment - police in-car cameras 46,215 

  

Equipment - video surveillance systems 22,092 

  

Equipment - computer equipment 11,283 

  

Equipment - radio equipment 64,154 

  

Less: accumulated amortization (719,228) 

 

(57,230) 

 

$ 167,644  $  

 

Amortization of capital assets under financed purchase obligations are included with 
depreciation expense. Additionally, the City at times rents various equipment on a short-term 
basis. 

NOTE 10 LEASES 

Lease Obligations  

The City's current lease agreements as lessee are summarized as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 

Commencement 

Date 

Payment 

Tenns 

Payment 

Amount 

Interest 

Rate 

Total Lease 

Libilyit' 

Balance at 

June 30, 2024 

Vehicles Various 5 years $ 60,949 Various $ 250,486 $ 196.261 

Office Equipment 7/1/2023 51 months 2.062 1.93% 8.334 6,433 

T ota I 

Conunencement Payment 

$ 63.011, 

Interest 

25R /3'.0 

Total Lease 

$ 202.695, 

Payment Balance at 

Business-Type Activities: Date Terms AnhAllil Rate Liability June 30, 2024 

Vehicles 711/2022 5 years 5; 14,174 Various $ 54,604 $ 32,210 

Lease agreements with Enterprise Fleet Management for eight vehicles (six related to 
governmental activities and two related to business-type activities). The varying agreements 
began July 1, 2022 through January 1, 2024 for terms of 5 years and are cancellable, by any 
party, at any time. The City will not acquire the equipment at the end of the tenn. 

Lease agreernent with Pitney Bowes for digital mailing system. The agreement began July 1, 
2023 for a term of 51 months and is cancellable, by any party, at any time. The City will not 
acquire the equipment at the end of the terrn. 

41 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 10 LEASES (CONTINUED) 

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and related interest are as follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Year Ending 

June 30, Principal Interest Total 
2025 $ 50,734 12,278 S 63,012 
2026 53,808 6,663 60,471 
2027 57,080 4,706 61,786 
2028 29,590 2,621 32,211 
2029 11,483 457 11,940 

 

20'7,695 S 26,725  S 229,420 

Business-Type Activities: 
Year Ending 

June 30, Principal Interest Total 
l(ps $ 12,221 $ 1,953 S 14,174 
2026 12,960 1,215 14,175 
2027 7,029 429 7,458 

32,210 $ 3,597 $ 35,807 

Lease Receivable 

The City's current lease agreement as lessor is summarized as follows 

Commencement Payment Payment Interest Total Lease Balance at 

Governmental Acti es: Date Terms Amount Rate Receivable  June 30, 2024  

Okl City Hall Builciing 12/I /2023 31 months $ 400 3 106% $ 11.610 $ 9,171 

Lease agreernent with Acadian Arnbulance for use of the Old City Hall Building. The 
agreement began December 1, 2023 for a term of 31 months ending May 31, 2026, and is 
cancellable, by any party, at any tirne. The lessee has the option to extend the term of the lease 
for an additional one year terrn. The asset will rernain with the City at the end of the term. 

Future payments to the City under the lease agreement and related interest payments are as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities: 
Year Ending 

June 30, Principal Interest Total 
2025 4,515 $ 285 4,800 
2026 4,656 144 4,800 

 

S 9,171 $ 429  9,600 
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NOTE 11 GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES 

As of June 30, 2024, governmental fund balances are comprised of the following: 

 

General 
Fund 

Sewerage and 
Solid Waste 
Sales Tax 

Ad Valorem 
Tax 

Collection 

Other 
Govenunental 

Funds 

Total 
Govenunental 

Funds 
Nonspendable 

     

Interfund advances $1,500,00(1 - $ $ - $ 1,500,000 

Restricted 

     

Debt retirement 

   

1,191,968 1,191,968 
Capital expenditures 

   

604,357 604,357 
Sewerage and solid 

waste 

 

1,648,966 

  

1,648,966 

Street repairs 

   

182,569 182,569 

Unassigied (defici ) 831,714 

  

(335,589) 496,125 

 

$2,331,714 S_F,648,966  $  L1143,305  5,623,985  

NOTE 12 DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FLOW OF FUNDS SALES AND USE TAXES 

The City collects sales taxes under four sales tax levies as follows: 

Proceeds of a 1% parish wide sales and use tax levied in 1966 (2024 collections S1,012,547; 
2023, $979,782; 2022, $904,649). Tax is collected by the St. Mary Parish Sales and Use Tax 
Department and is remitted to each participating municipality on a monthly basis. The City's 
allocation is 4.7818% of the first $1,500,000 of net taxes collected. Fifty percent of any 
collection in excess of $1,500,000 is divided proportionately among the participating 
municipalities according to their respective populations as reflected by the most recent federal 
census or most recent special census. Proceeds of this tax shall be used for the following 
purposes: construction, acquisition, improvement, maintenance and repairs of streets, capital 
improvements, public works and buildings (including the acquisition of sites and necessary 
fixtures, equipment, furnishings and appurtenances, and the payment of obliations and 
refunding obligations which have been or may be issued for the purpose of acquiring and 
improving public works and buildings); for payment or supplementing salaries of all municipal 
employees; for the operation of recreational facilities; for the acquisition, maintenance, repairs 
and payrnent of operating expenses of equipment, vehicles, and other machinety owned by the 
municipality; and for any other public purpose authorized by state law. 

Proceeds of a 3/1% sales and use tax originally levied in 1974 (2024 collections $1,010,237; 
2023, $975,278; 2022, $892,592). Tax is collected by the St. Mary Parish Sales and Use Tax 
Department and is allocated and distributed rnonthly among the participating municipalities 
according to their respective populations as reflected by the most recent federal census or the 
tnost recent special census. Proceeds are to be used for the constniction, acquisition, extension, 
improvement, operation and maintenance of solid waste collection and disposal facilities, 
sewers and sewerage disposal works, and other facilities for pollution control and abatement; 
and to pay debt service requirements on bonds issued for any of the above-rnentioned purposes. 
The tax was reapproved for levy in 1987. At the tirne of reauthorization, voters approved a 
provision authorizing that the proceeds could also be used for law enforcement and fire 
protection costs. 
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Proceeds of a 3/10% sales and use tax levied in 1982 (2024 collections $325,316; 2023, 
$339,475; 2022, S308,341). Tax is collected by the St. Mary Parish Sales and Use Tax 
Department and is allocated and distributed monthly among the participating municipalities 
according to their respective populations as reflected by the most recent federal census or the 
most recent special census. Proceeds are dedicated to the following purposes: operating and 
maintaining the police departinent, including the acquisition and maintenance of equipment 
and supplies; paying or supplementing the salaries of municipal employees; and purchasing, 
constnicting, acquiring, extending and/or improving all or any portion of public works or 
capital improvements, including but not limited to the construction, improvement and 
maintenance of drainage, water, and flood control extensions and improvements and the 
acquisition, construction, improvement, maintenance and repair of streets, roads, and bridges. 

Proceeds of a li:2% parish wide sales and use tax levied in 2000 (2024 collections $334,495; 
2023, $325,100; 2022, $299,179). Tax is collected by the St. Mary Parish Sales and Use Tax 
Department and is remitted to the St. Mary Parish Sheriff, the Parish of St. Mary and each 
participating municipality on a monthly basis. Proceeds of this tax may be used by the 
mwiicipalities for any lawful law enforcement purpose. 

NOTE 13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 

Eligible employees of the City participate in one of two multiple-employer public employee 
retirement systems (PERS), which are controlled and administered by two separate boards of 
trustees. These retirement systems provide retirement, disability and death benefits to plan 
members and their beneficiaries. Benefits under each system are established and amended by 
state statutes. Pertinent information for each system follows: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 

Plan Description: MERS was established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the 
Legislature of the State of Louisiana to provide retirement benefits to employees of all 
incorporated villages, towns and cities within the State which do not have their own retirement 
system and which elect to become members of the system. The City participates in Plan B of 
MERS. 

Eligibility Requirements: Membership is mandatory as a condition of employment beginning on 
the date employed if the employee is on a perrnanent basis working at least thirty-five hours per 
week. Those individuals paid jointly by a participating employer and the parish are not eligible for 
membership in MERS with exceptions as outlined in the statutes. 

Any person eligible for membership whose first employment making him eligible for membership 
in MERS occurred on or after January 1, 2013 shall become a rnember of the MERS Plan A Tier 
2 or MERS Plan B Tier 2 of the system as a condition of employment. 

Retirement Benefits: Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 356 of the 1954 regular session 
and amended by LRS 11:1756-11:1785. The following brief description of the plan and its benefits 
is provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropnate 
statutes for more complete inforrnation. 
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Retirement Benefits: Any rnernber of Plan B who cornrnenced participation in the System prior 
to January 1, 2013 can retire providing the members meets one of the following criteria: 

1. Any age with thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 60 with a minimum of ten ( 10) or more years of creditable service. 

Generally, the monthly amount of the retirement allowance for any member of Plan B shall 
consist of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by 
his years of creditable service. Final compensation is the average monthly earnings during the 
highest sixty consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted. However, under 
certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are lirnited to specified arnounts. 

Any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall be eligible for retirement if he rneets one of the following 
requirements: 

1. Age 67 with seven (7) years of creditable service. 
2. Age 62 with ten (10) years of creditable service. 
3. Age 55 with thirty (30) years of creditable service. 
4. Any age with twenty-five (25) years of creditable service, exclusive of rnilitaiy service 

and unused annual sick leave, with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

The monthly amount of the retirernent allowance for any member of Plan B Tier 2 shall consist 
of an amount equal to two percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. Final compensation is the average monthly eaniings during the highest 
sixty consecutive rnonths, or joined rnonths if service was interrupted. However, under certain 
conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts. 

Survivor Benefits: Upon death of any member of Plan B with five (5) or more years of 
creditable service, not eligible for normal retirement, the plan provides for benefits for the 
surviving spouse as outlined in the statutes. 

Any member of Plan B who is eligible for normal retirement at time of death and who leaves 
a surviving spouse will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benefits on behalf of 
the surviving spouse on the date of death. Such benefits will begin only upon proper application 
and are paid in lieu of any other survivor benefits. 

Deferred Retirement Option Plan (DROP) Benefits: In lieu of terminating employment and 
accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan B who is eligible to retire rnay 
elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to three years and 
defer the receipt of benefits. During participation in the plan, employer contributions are 
payable, but employee contributions cease. The monthly retirement benefits that would be 
payable, had the person elected to cease employment and receive a service retirement 
allowance, are paid into the DROP Fund. Interest is earned when the member has completed 
DROP participation. Interest earnings are based upon the actual rate of return on the 
investments identified as DROP funds for the period. In addition, no cost-of-living increases 
are payable to participants until employment which made them eligible to become members of 
the System has been terminated for at least one full year. 
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Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the specified period of participation, 
a participant in the DROP may receive, at his option, a lump sum from the account equal to the 
payments into the account, a true annuity based upon his account balance in that fund, or any 
other method of payment if approved by the Board of Trustees. If a participant dies during 
participation in the DROP, a lump sum equal to the balance in his account shall be paid to his 
named beneficiary or, if none, to his estate. If employment is not terminated at the end of the 
three years, payments into the DROP fund cease and the person resumes active contributing 
membership in the System. 

Disability Benefits: For Plan B, a member shall be eligible to retire and receive a disability 
benefit if he has at least ten years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement, 
and has been officially certified as disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. Upon 
retirement caused by disability, a ineinber of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal to 
the lesser (I) an amount equal to two percent of his final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service, but not less than thirty percent of his final compensation, or (2) an amount 
equal to what the member's normal retirement benefit would be based on the member's current 
final compensation, but assuming the member remained in continuous service until his earliest 
normal retirement age and using those retirement benefit computation factors which would be 
applicable to the member's normal retirement. 

Cost of Living Increases: MERS is authorized under state law to grant a cost-of-living increase 
to members who have been retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2% of 
the retiree's original benefit for each calendar year since retirement and may only be 
granted if sufficient funds are available from investment income in excess of normal 
requirements. State law allows the system to grant an additional cost-of-living increase to all 
retirees and beneficiaries who are age sixty-five and above equal to 2% of the benefit being 
received on October 1, 1977, or the original benefit, if retirement commenced after that date. 

Deferred Benefits: Plan B provides for deferred benefits for members who terminate before 
being eligible for retirement. Once the member reaches the appropriate age for retirement, 
benefits become payable. Benefits are based on statutes in effect at the time of withdrawal. 

Employer Contributions: Contributions for all members are established by statute. Member 
contributions are at 5% of earnable compensation for Plan B. The contributions are deducted 
from the ineinber's salary and remitted by the participating municipality. 

According to state statute, contributions for all employers are actuarially determined each year. 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, the employer contribution rate for Plan B was 15.50%. 

Non-Employer Contributions: According to state statute, the System also receives one-fourth 
(1/4) of 1% of ad valorem taxes within the respective parish. MERS also receives revenue 
sharing funds each year as appropriated by the Legislature. These additional sources of income 
are used as additional employer contributions and considered support from non-employer 
contributing entities. 
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: At June 30, 2024, The City reported liabilities in its government-wide 
financial statements of $359,913 and $870,316 in its governmental activities and its business-
type activities, respectively for its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of MERS. 
The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2023 and the total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension obligation was determined by separate actuarial valuations 
perforrned on each of the retirement systerns as of that date. Under each retirement system, the 
City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's long-term 
share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the City's proportional share 
of MERS was 1.534216%, which was a decrease of 0.076840% from its proportion measured 
as ofJune 30, 2022. 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the City recognized a pension expense of $92,032 and 
$151,084 in its governmental activities and its business-type activities, respectively, related to 
its participation in MERS. 

At June 30, 2024, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
Deferred 

Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 5,303 $ - $ 12,375 $ 431 

47,875 

 

111,709 

 

8,722 15,705 39,424 21,090 

73,321 

 

122,837 

 

$ 135,221  $ 15,705  $ 286,345  $ 21,521  

Difference between expected and actual 
experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

Chanttes in proportion and differences 
between employer contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

Employer contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 
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The $196,158 reported as defeiTed outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions to MERS subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the following fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 

Year 
Governmental 

Activities 
Business-Type 

Activities Total 
2025 $ 24,240 $ 56,560 8(),8()() 
2026 2,939 6,857 9,796 
2027 31,304 73,044 104,348 
2028 (12,288) 5,526 (6,762) 

 

S 46,195  141,987  $ 188,182 

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment 
mortality and future salary increases. Actuarially determined amounts regarding the net pension 
liability are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018. 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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Information on the actuarial valuation and assumptions is as follows: 

Municipal Employees' 
Retirement System (MERS) 

Plan B 
June 30, 2023 

Entry Age Normal 

3 years 

6.85%, net of pension plan investment expense, 
including inflation 

2.5% 

7.4% 
9 4.% 

PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Table set equal to 
120% for males and females each adjusted using 
their respective male and female MP2018 scales. 

PubG-2010(B) Employee Table set equal to 120% 
for males and females each adjusted using their 

respective male and female MP2018 scales. 

PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Table set equal 
to 120% for males and females with the full 
generational MP2018 scale. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial cost method 

Expected remaining service lives 

Investment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases, includin2 
inflation and merit increases: 

-1 to 4 years of service 
-More than 4 years of service 

Annuity and beneficiary mortality 

Employee mortality 

Disabled lives mortality 

The investment rate of return was 6.85%, which was no cliange from the rate used as ofJune 30, 
2022. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the System's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2024, are summarized in the 
following table: 

Asset Class 
Tarixt Asset 

Allocation 

Long-Term Expected 
Portfolio Real Rate 

of Return 

Public Equity 56% 2.44% 
Public fixed income 29% 1.26% 
Alternat ives 15% 0.65% 
Totals 100% 4.35% 

Inflation 

 

2.50% 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

 

6.85% 

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85%, which 
was no change from the rate used as of June 30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discowit rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates, which are calculated in accordance with relevant statutes and 
approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee. 
Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to deterrnine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate: The following presents the employers' proportionate 
share of the net pension liability using the applicable discount rate as well as what the 
employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current 
rate: 

1% Discount 1% 
Decrease Rate Increase 
5.850% 6.850% 7.850% 

Net Pension Liability $ 1,738,323 S I 230 229 800,462 

Support of Non-Employer Contributing Entities: Contributions received by a pension plan from 
non-employer contributing entities that are not in a special funding situation are recorded as 
revenue by the respective pension plan. The City recognizes revenue in an amount equal to its 
proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these non-employer 
contributing entities. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the City recognized revenue as a 
result of support received from non-employer contributing entities of $48,871 for its 
participation in MERS. 
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Payables to the Pension Plan: The City recorded accrued liabilities to MERS for the year ended 
June 30, 2024, primarily due to the accrual for payroll at the end of the fiscal year. The amounts 
due are included in liabilities under the amounts reported as accounts and other payables. The 
balance due to MERS as of June 30, 2024 is $13,769. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Positions: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued financial report for MERS available at 
www.mersla.com. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) 

Plan Description: The Mwiicipal Police Employees' Retirement System is the administrator of 
a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership in MPERS is mandatory for any full-time 
police officer employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law 
enforcement, empowered to make arrests, provided he or she does not have to pay social 
security and providing he or she meets the statutory criteria. MPERS provides retirement 
benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of benefit payments in the calculation of 
the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to current active and inactive 
employees through MPERS in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal 
agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 

The Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana issues a stand-alone report 
on their financial statements. Access to the audit report can be found on the System's website: 
www.lampers.org or on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www.11a.state.la.us. 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 11:2211-
11:2233. The following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for 
general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more 
complete information. 

Membership Prior to January 1, 2013: A member is eligible for regular retirement after Ile has 
been a member of MPERS and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 20 years of 
creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A member is 
eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of creditable 
service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. 

Benefit rates are 3.33% of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was interrupted) per number of years 
of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under conditions outlined in state statute, the benefits 
range from 40% to 60% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. 
In addition, each child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10% of the member's average 
final compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. 
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Membership Cominencing January 1, 2013: Member eligibility for regular retirement, early 
retirement, disability and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous 
Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement 
after he has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 
12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is 
eligible for regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 30 years of 
creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable 
service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a rnernber is eligible for early retirernent after he has 
been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially 
reduced benefit from age 55. 

Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% (generally) 
and 2.50%, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 60 consecutive months or joined rnonths if service was interrupted) per number of years 
of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contributing rnernber, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under conditions outlined in state statute, benefits range 
from 25% to 55% of the member's average final compensation for the surviving spouse. In 
addition, each child under age 18 receives benefits equal to 10% of the member's average final 
compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. If deceased member had less than 10 
years of service, beneficiary will receive a refitnd of employee contributions only. 

Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA): The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual 
cost-of-living adjustments computed on the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, 
beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to exceed 3% in any given year. The Board is authorized 
to provide an additional 2% COLA, computed on the member's original benefit, to all regular 
retirees, disability, survivors and beneficiaries who are 65 years of age or older on the cut-off 
date which determines eligibility. 

No regular retiree, survivor or beneficiary shall be eligible to receive a cost-of-living adjustment 
until benefits have been received at least one full fiscal year and the payment of such COLA, when 
authorized, shall not be effective until the lapse of at least one-half of the fiscal year. Metnbers 
who elect early retirement are not eligible for a cost-of-living adjustment until they reach regular 
retirement age. 

A COLA may only be granted if funds are available from interest earnings in excess of normal 
requirements, as determined by the actuary. 

Deferred Retirernent Option Plan (DROP): A member is eligible to enter DROP when he is eligible 
for regular retirement based on the member's sub plan participation. Upon filing the application 
for the program, the employee's active membership in the system is terminated. At the entry date 
into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The arnount to be deposited into 
the DROP accowit is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the 
participant at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is 36 months or less. 
If employment is terrninated after the three-year period, the participant rnay receive his benefits 
by lump sum payment or a true annuity. If employment is not tenninated, active contributing 
membership in the systern shall resurne and upon later termination, he shall receive additional 
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retirement benefit based on the additional service. For those eligible to enter DROP prior to 
January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shall earn interest subsequent to the termination of DROP 
participation at a rate of half of one percentage point below the percentage rate of return of the 
system's investment portfolio as certified by the actuary on an annual basis but will never lose 
money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an irrevocable election 
is made to earn interest based on the system's investment portfolio return or a money market 
investment return. This could result in negative earnings rate being applied to the account. 

If the member elects the money market investment return option, the funds are transferred to a 
government money market account and earn interest at the money market rate. 

Initial Benefit Option Plan: In 1999, the Louisiana Legislature authorized the MPERS to 
establish an Initial Benefit Option (IBO) program. IBO is available to members who are eligible 
for regular retirement and have not participated in DROP. The IBO program provides both a 
one-time single sum payment of up to 36 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a 
reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Interest is computed on the balance based on the 
same criteria as DROP. 

Employer Contributions: According to state statute, contribution requirements for all 
employers are actuarially determined each year but cannot be less than 9% of the employee's 
eamable compensation excluding overtitne but including state supplemental pay. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the employer and employee contribution rates for all 
members hired prior to January 1, 2013 and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 
2013 were 31.25% and 10%, respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for 
all Non-Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 20B were 31.25% and 8%, 
respectively. The employer and employee contribution rates for all members whose eaniable 
compensation is less than or equal to the poverty guidelines issued by the United States 
Department of Health and Human Services were 33.75% and 7.5%, respectively. 

Non-Employer Contributions: MPERS receives insurance premium tax monies as additional 
employer contributions. The tax is considered support from a non-contributing entity and 
appropriated by the Legislature each year based on an actuarial report. Non-etnployer 
contributions are recognized as revenue and excluded from pension expense. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources: At June 30, 2024, the City reported liabilities in its government-wide 
financial statements of S1,403,704 in its governmental activities for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liabilities of MPERS. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension obligation was determined 
by actuarial valuation performed on the retirement system as of that date. Under the retirement 
systern, the City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City's 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the City's proportional 
share of MPERS was 0.132864%, which was an increase of 0.042768% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2022. 
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For the year ended June 30, 2024, the City recognized a pension expense of $362,472 in its 
governmental activities related to its participation in MPERS. 

At June 30, 2024, the City reported defetTed outflows of resources and defetTed inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 

MPERS 

Governmental Activities 

Deferred 

Outflows 

of Resources 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 98,877 $ 588 

Changes of assumptions 23,424 

 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 151,538 

 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
ernployer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 302,863 97,781 

Employer contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 198,239 

  

$ 774,941  98,369  

The $198,239 reported as defeiTed outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from City 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the following fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense (benefit) as follows: 

Year 
2025 $ 169,914 
2026 77,667 

2027 238,284 
2028 (7,532) 

 

$ 478,333 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the 
present value of projected benefit payments to be provided through the pension plan to current 
active and inactive employees that is attributed to those employee's past periods of service, less 
the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the assumptions used 
in the June 30, 2023 actuarial funding valuation and were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period of July l, 2014 through June 30, 2019. In cases where benefit 
structures were changed after the study period, assumptions were based on the estimates of future 
experience. 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension 
liability as ofJune 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Municipal Pohce Employees' 

Retirement System (MPERS) 

June 30, 2023 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

6.750%, net of investment expense 

2.50% 

Yrs of Service Salary Growth 

1-2 12.30% 

Above 2 4.70% 

For annuitants and beneficiaries, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement 

Plan Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy R.etirees 

multiplied by 1 15% for males and 125% for females, each with 

full generational projection using the MP2019 scale. 

For disahled lives, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortahty 

Table for Safety Disable Retirees multiplied by 105% for males 

and 115% for females, each with full generational projection using 

the MP2019 scale. 

For employees, the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortahty 

Table for Safety Below-Median Employees multiplied by 1 15% 

for males and 125% for females, each with full generational 

projection using the MP2019 scale. 

The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 

benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 

previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present 

values do not include provisions for potential future increases 

not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial cost method 

Expected remaining service lives 

Investment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Salary increases, including intlation 

and merit 

Mortality 

Cost of Living Adjustments 

The investment rate of return was 6.75%, which was no change from the rate used as of June 
30, 2022. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience study performed by the prior 
actuary on plan data for the period July 1, 2(114 through June 30, 2019, and review of similar law 
enforcement mortality. A change was made to fitll generational mortality which combines the use 
of a base mortality table with appropriate mortality itnprovement scales. In order to set the base 
mortality table, actual plan mortality expelience was assigned a credibility weighting and 
combined with a standard table to produce current levels of mortality. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED) 

The best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in 
the System's target allocation as ofJune 30, 2024 are summarized in the following table: 

June .3(t 2024 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 

Long Term 
Expected 

Portfolio Real 
Rate of Return 

Equity 52.00% 3.29% 
Fixed Income 34.00% 1.12% 
Alternative 14.00% 0.95% 

Totals 100.00% 5.36% 

Inflation 

 

2.54% 
Expected Arithmetic Return 

 

7.90% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%, which was no change 
from the rate used as of June 30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to detennine the 
discount rate assurned that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the 
actuarially determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the 
recommendation of the System's actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate: The following presents the employers' proportionate 
share of the net pension liability using the applicable discount rate as well as what the 
ernployer's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using 
a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current 
rate: 

Changes in Discount Rate: 
MPERS 
Current 
Discount 1% 

Decrease Rate Increase 
5.750% 6.750% 7.750% 

Net Pension Liability $ 1,975,122 $ 1,4(13,7(14 926,359 

Support of Non-Employer Contributing Entities: Contributions received by a pension plan from 
non-ernployer contributing entities that are not in a special funding situation are recorded as 
revenue by the respective pension plan. The City recognizes revenue in an amount equal to its 
proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these non-employer 
contributing entities. During the year ended June 30, 2024, the City recognized revenue as a 
result of support received from non-employer contributing entities of $30,643 for its 
participation in MPERS. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT (CONTINUED) 

Payables to the Pension Plan: The City recorded accrued liabilities to MPERS for the year 
ended June 30, 2024, primarily due to the accrual for payroll at the end of the fiscal year. The 
arnounts due are included in liabilities under the arnounts reported as accounts and other 
payables. The balance due to MPERS as of June 30, 2024 is $15,453. 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Positions: Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued financial report for MPERS available at 
www.larnpers.org. 

Aggregate Net Pension Liability, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Pension Expense  

As detailed above, the City participates in two separate defined benefit pension plans. The 
aggregate amounts for the City's participation in Municipal Employees' Retirement Systern of 
Louisiana (MERS) and Municipal and State Police Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS) 
are as follows: 

Employer's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability: 
MERS MP ERS Agw-egate     

Governmental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 
Total 

S 359,913 $1,403,704 $1,763,617 
870,316 870,316 

1,230_229 $1,403,704 $2,633,933 

MERS MPERS Aggregate  
135,221 $ 774,941 S 910,162 
286,345 286,345 

S 421,566 S 774,941 $1,196,507 

MERS MPERS Aggregate  

Deferred Outflows of Resources: 

Governmental Activities 
Business-Type Activities 
Total 

s: Deferred Inflows of Resource 

Governmental Activities $ 15,705 $ 98,369 $ 114,074 
Business-Type Activities 21,521 - 21,521  
Total $ 37,226 $ 98,369 S 135,595 

Pension Expense: 
MERS MPERS Aggregate 

Governniental Activities $ 92,032 $ 362,472 S 454,504 
Business-Type Activities 151,084 - 151,084 
Total S 243,116 S 362,472 S 605,588 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 14 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Effective with the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017, the City implemented Government 
Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting by 
Ernployerqbr Povernployment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 75). 

Plan Description and Funding Policy 

The City's defined benefit postemployment health care plan provides OPEB to eligible retired 
employees and their beneficiaries until the retiree attains the age of 65. The plan provides OPEB 
for permanent full-time employees of the City participating in the City's group health insurance 
plan. The City's OPEB plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the 
City. Benefits are provided through the City's group health insurance carrier. No assets are 
accuinulated in a trust that ineets the criteria in paragraph 4 of Statement 75. The premiuin rates 
are established and may be amended by the group health insurance canier with the City 
determining the contribution requirements of the retirees. 

Once the retiree becomes eligible to obtain Medicare supplement insurance, the retiree and their 
dependents are no longer eligible to participate in the City's group health insurance plan. The 
retiree is eligible to obtain a Medicare supplemental insurance policy through the OPEB plan. 
Premiums are determined by the group health insurance carrier with the City contributing 75% of 
the premium amount. 

Benefits Provided 

The City provides medical benefits for retirees and their dependents. The benefit tenns provide for 
payment of 75% of retiree pre-Medicare health insurance premiums. The plan also provides for 
payment of 75% of Medicare Supplemental insurance payments. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

At June 30, 2024, there were a total of 48 employees covered by the benefit terms. Of these 48 
employees, 45 were active employees and 3 were inactive employees cun-ently receiving benefits 
payments. 

The City's total OPEB liability of S1,016,261 was measured as of June 30, 2024 and was 
detennined by the alternative ineasureinent method. Small employers with less than 100 total plan 
participants are eligible to use the alternative measurement method. 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 14 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Key Asswnptions and Other Inputs  

The total OPEB liability as ofJune 30, 2024 was determined using the following key assumptions 
and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Salary increases, including inflation 

Discount rate 

Percentage part cipation 

Heahhcare cost trend rates 
Medical 

2.00% 

4.60% 

100.00% 

Initially 5.8%, decreasing 0. 1% in year 2 and year 3, 
then decreasing 0.2% per year to year 9, then 
decreasinu to 4.1% in year 10 

Retirees' share of benefit-related costs 
Medical ?5% for retirees and 25% for dependents 

Medicare supplement 25% for retirees 

The discowit rate was based on the June 30, 2024 Fidelity General Obligation AA 20-Year Yield. 

Mortality rates for active employees were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Tables, with mortality improvement projected for ten years. 

Changes in Total OPEB Liability 

 

Governmental 
Funds 

Business-Type 
Funds 

Total OPEB 
Liability 

Balance at 6/30/2023 $ 938,582 $ 439,960 $1,378,542 

Charges for the year: 

   

Service cost 42,595 19,962 62,557 
Interest on OP EB liability 40,137 18,81() 58,947 
Effect of economic gains and losses (281,249) (131,806) (413,055) 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (47,160) (23,570) (70,730) 
Net changes (245,677) (116,604) (362,281) 

Balance at 6/30/2024 692,905  $ 323,356  $1,016,261  

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 14 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.60 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (5.60 percent) than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 
(3.60%) (4.60%) (5.60%)  

Total OP EB Liability LL1.10.734 S 1.016.261 $ 933,389 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liabilitv to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point 
lower or 1-percentage-point high than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase  

Total OP EB Liability $ 930,509 $ 1,016,261 ,112,406 

NOTE 15 SOCIAL SECURITY SYSTEM 

All employees of the City participate in the Social Security System. The City and its employees 
contribute a percentage of each employee's salary to the System (7.65% contributed by the 
City and 7.65% by the employee). The City's contribution during the year ended June 30, 2024 
was $204,620. 

NOTE 16 RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City has 
elected to purchase insurance coverage through the commercial insurance market to cover its 
exposure to loss. The City is insured up to policy limits for each of the above risks. There were 
no significant changes in coverages, retentions, or limits during the year ended June 30, 2024. 
Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial coverages in any of the previous three fiscal 
years. 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 17 COMPENSATION OF CITY OFFICIALS 

A detail of compensation paid to the City Council for the year ended June 30, 2024 follows: 

Mayor: 
Rodney Grotzan 54,000 

Council: 

 

Lee Condolle $ 6,000 

Ray Dewey, Sr. 6,000 
Miranda Weinbach 6,000 
Mamie Perry 6,000 
R. Demale Bowden, Jr. 6,000 

 

$ 30,000 

Act 706 of the 2014 Legislative Session amended R.S. 24:513A requiring additional disclosure 
of total compensation, reimbursements, benefits, or other payments made to an agency head or 
chief officer. Payments to and on behalf of the City's chief officer, Mayor Rodney Grogan, for 
the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows: 

Salaiy $ 54,000 

Benefits - insurance 8,711 
Benefits - retirement 7,560 
Reimbursements for supplies 737 

Conference traveHodginglmeals 4,861 

 

$ 75,869 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.) 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 18 JOINT VENTURE 

The City is a participant in a joint venture with the Parish of St. Mary, St. Mary Parish Water 
and Sewer Commission No. 3, and the Town of Berwick for operating and maintaining a 
sewerage disposal system. The system is operated by a five-member board of commissioners, 
appointed one each by the City, St. Mary Parish Water and Sewer Commission No. 3, and the 
Town of Berwick, and two appointed by the St. Mary Parish Council (one each from Ward 5 
and Ward 8 of St. Mary Parish). 

The costs of constructing the system, which amounted to approximately $10,300,000, were 
paid by the participants in the following percentages: 

City of Patterson 27.75% 
Town of Berwick 27.05% 

St. Mary Parish 45.20% 
100.00% 

The board operates and maintains the system as the "St. Mary Parish Wards 5 and 8 Joint 
Sewerage Commission". Operating expenses are paid from revenues generated by charging the 
participants a monthly fee based on a percentage of water consumption by residents of 
participating units. The City finances its share of the fees paid from the Utility Fund and has 
not included its 27.75% share of the system in these financial statements. 

Following is a summary of the financial statements issued by the St. Mary Parish Wards 5 and 
8 Joint Sewerage Commission as of September 30, 2023 which includes only the assets and 
liabilities required in operating and maintaining the system and does not include the original 
$10,300,000 construction cost paid by the participants. 

The balance sheet reflected the following: 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources S 1,857,066 
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 72,100 
Total net position $ 1,784,966 

The statement of revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, reflected 
the following: 

Operating revenues $ 1,270,420 
Nonoperating revenues 9,228 
Operating expenses (995,503) 
Change in net position S 284,145 

Additional information tnay be obtained frotn the separately issued financial statements of the 
St. Mary Parish Wards 5 and 8 Joint Sewerage Commission for the year ended September 30, 
2023. 
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Notes to Financial Statements 

NOTE 19 DEFICIT FUND BALANCES 

The following nonmajor funds reported deficit unassigned fund balances at June 30, 2024: 

Debt Service Fund 
Public Improvement Sales Tax Bonds Fund S 197,055 
1990 Paving Assessments Fund 107,875 

Capital Projects Fund 

 

2002 Paving Project Construction Fund 30,558 
Water Plant Construction Fund 101 

The deficits resulted from the expenditure of fitnds obligated to repay interfund loans. 
Management anticipates eliminating these deficits through transfers from other funds. 

NOTE 20 PAYROLL TAX PENALTIES ASSESSED 

The Internal Revenue Service has assessed failure-to-file and failure-to-pay penalties on the 
City as a result of the City's previous delinquency in remitting payroll tax payments and 
submitting Forms 941 to the federal tax authorities. The penalties assessed as of June 30, 2024 
in the approximate amount of $341,000 were not accrued as a contingency, however, since it 
is rnore than probable that the penalties will ultirnately be waived by the IRS. 

NOTE 21 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the City made adjustments to the General Fund 
beginning fund balance, governrnent-wide beginning net position for Governrnental Activities, 
and the Utility Fund beginning net position to correct accounting errors. Accnied liabilities 
related to unpaid payroll taxes and interest assessed on unpaid taxes to the IRS were understated 
by $71,817. Effects of the prior period adjustment on net position are as follows: 

Government-Wide 
Financial Statements 

 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-

 

Type 
Activities 

Be&ning balance, before restatement $ 9,184,533 $5,744,808 

Adjustment for payroll liabilities and interest (45,245) (26,572) 

Beginning balance, as restated $ 9,139,288  $5,718,236 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Cornparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Final 
Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 1,985,000 $ 2,055,172 $ 1,932,932 $ (122,240) 
Licenses and Pennits 226,40(1 218,828 201,840 (16,988) 
Intergovernmental 216,170 263,048 263,701 653 
Charges for Services 711,000 746,000 807,843 61,843 
Fines and Forfeits 420,00(1 420,000 426,046 6,046 
Miscellaneous 140,452 149,008 267,063 118,055 

Total Revenues 3,699,022 3,852,056 3,899,425 47,369 

Expenditures: 

    

CuiTent - 

    

General Government: 

    

Administrative 743,790 734,551 1,016,992 (282,441) 
Mechanic Shop 143,950 138,378 152,856 (14,478) 
Public Safety: 

    

Police 1,959,650 2,128,916 2,315,354 (186,438) 
Fire 85,400 85,242 63,308 21,934 

Streets and Drainage 606,150 615,184 926,502 (311,318) 
Culture and Recreation 234,100 291,497 215,425 76,072 
Sanitation 553,000 603,009 615,368 (12,359) 

Capital Outlay 231,460 303,768 180,678 123,090 
Debt Service - - 193,575 (193,575) 

Total Expenditures 4,557,50(1 4,900,545 5,680,058 (779,513) 

Deficiency of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (858,478) (1,048,489) (1,780,633) (732,144) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

    

Proceeds from capital lease - 

 

107,983 107,983 
Operating Transfers Out - 

 

(151,489) (151,489) 
Operating Transfers In 967,278 967,278 1,424,191 456,913 

Total other tuiancuig 
sources (uses) 967,278 967,278 1,380,685 413,407 

Net Chatuze in Fund Balance 108,800 (81,211) (399,948) (318,737) 

Fund Balance, Beginning 3,359,386 3,359,386 2,731,662 (627,724) 

Fund Balance, Ending $ 3,468,186 $ 3,278,175 $ 2,331,714 i (946,461)  

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund 

Budgetary Cornparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Budaet Favorable 
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 1,013,000 $ 1,013,000 1,010,237 $ (2,763) 
Interest on Deposits 3,500 4,205 52,715 48,510 

Total Revenues 1,016,500 1,017,205 1,062,952 45,747 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 
Regional Sewerage 27,000 27,000 

 

27,000 

Capital outlay 4,200 4,200 

 

4,200 

Total expenditures 31,200 31,200 

 

31,200 

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 985,300 986,005 1,062,952 76,947 

Other Financuig Sources (Uses): 

    

Operating Transfers Out (981,000) (981,000) (1,224,098) (243,098) 
Total other financing 

sources (uses) (981,000) (981,000) (1,224,098) (243,098) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 4,300 5,005 (161,146) (166,151) 

Fund Balance, Beginning 543,436 543,436 1,810,112 1,266,676 

Fund Balance, Ending S 547,736 $ 548,441 S 1,648,966 $ 1,100,525 

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund 
Budgetary Cornparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

OriOnal Fina 
Revenues: 

    

Taxes $ 537,001) $ 537,000 $ 569,3()7 32,307 

Interest on Deposits 17 17 

 

(17) 

Miscellaneous 600 600 23,468 22,868 

Total Revenues 537,617 537,617 592,775 55,158 

Expenditures: 

    

Current - 
General Government 4,000 4,000 8,222 (4,222) 

Total expenditures 4,000 4,000 8,222 (4,???) 

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 533,617 533,617 584,553 50,936 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

    

Operating Transfers Out (531,339) (531,339) (889,180) (357,841) 
Total other financing 

sources (uses) (531,339) (531,339) (889,180) (357,841) 

Net Chanue in Fund Balance 2,278 2,278 (304,627) (306,905) 

Fund Balance, Beginning 337,900 337,900 304,627 (33,273) 

Fund Balance, Ending $ 340,178 S 340,178 $ $ (340,178)  

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB 

Liability and Related Ratios 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 
Total OPEB Liability 

       

Service Cost $ 44.561 $ 48,177 $ 50,370 $ 62,557 $ 62,557 $ 67,557 $ 62,557 
Interest 25,958 29,395 28,284 26,369 26.061 26,162 58,947 
Effect of economic gains and losses 

 

(99,350) 104,167 19,860 (482,001) 711,105 (413,055) 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience 24 053 (6,717) 73 303 13,579 195,0721 (74,648 i 170,7301 

Net channe in total OPEB habihty 94,572 (28,500) 256.124 122.365 (488,405) 725,276 (362,281) 

Total C)PEB liabilitv, begnming 697,110 791.682 763,182 1,019,306 1,141,671 653.266 1.378.542 
Total C)PEB liability, ending 1_Z91,68Z S 763.18Z S 1 019,301 S I 141,6ü 653,26. $ 1.378.54Z L1.016.711, 

Covered employee payroll $ 1.151.467 $ 1.186.794 $ 1.210.534 1.271.061 S 1.472.744 2.414.139 2.755.98Z 

Total C)PEB liability as a percentage of 
covered employee pavroll 

  

u2Li!. IL?,g 446.4..4?". Lgt .11(L2t • 

This schedule is intended m show information for 10 years Additianal years vs& he &splayed as Me) become available. 

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer's Share 

Of Net Pension Liability 
For tlie Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Employer Einployer 

 

Proportionate Share 

  

Proportion Proportionate 

 

of the Net Pension Plan Fiduciary 
Plan of the Share of the 

 

Liability (Asset) as a Net Position 
Year Net Pension Net Pension Einployer's Percentage of its as a Percentage 
ended Liability Liability Covered Covered Employee of the Total 

June 30, (Asset) (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
2014 1.646384% 772.971 $1.206,100 64.1% 76.94% 
2015 1.518223% 1,031.856 $1.050,232 98.3% 68.71% 
2016 1.495290% 1.239,459 $ 1,098,595 112.8% 62.11% 
2017 1.440633% 1,246,483 $1,070.609 116.4% 63.49% 
2018 1.477940% 1,250.089 $1.087,923 114.9% 65.60% 
2019 1.377163% 1,2(14,761 $1,052,795 114.4% 66.14% 
2020 1.380852% 1,251.364 $1.070,122 116.9% 66.26% 
2021 1.410540% 817,13g $1,084.035 75.4% 79.14% 
2022 1.611056% 1.414,481 $1,300.368 108.8% 69.56% 
2023 1.534216% $ 1,230.229 51.318,123 93.3% 73.25% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

   

2014 0.105901% S 662.535 $ 297,210 222.9% 75.10% 
2015 0.108207% 847,689 $ 289,873 292.4% 70.73% 
2016 0.100478% 941,762 $ 281,321 334.8% 66.04% 
2017 0.116587% 1.017.854 $ 351.997 289.2% 70.08% 
2018 0.094905% 802.333 $ 280,078 286.5% 71.89% 
2019 0.065463% 594,514 $ 204,434 290.8% 71.01% 
2020 0.096528% 892,144 $ 298,147 299.2% 70.94% 
2021 0.116014% 618.418 $ 355,683 173.9% 84.09% 
101? 0.090096% $ 920,941 $ 278,136 331.1% 70.80% 
2023 0.132864% 1,403,704 $ 450,096 311.9% 71.30% 

This schedule is intended to show Information for 10 rears. Addnional vears will be displayed as they become available. 

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

  

Contributions in 
Relation to 

  

Contributions 
as a % of 

Fiscal Contractually Contractual Contribution Employer's Covered 
Year ended Required Required Deficiency Covered Employee 

June 30, Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll P ayro 11 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
2015 99,772 $ 99,772 $ $ 1,050,232 9.50% 
2016 104,161 $ 104,161 $ $ 1,098,595 9.48% 
2017 117,767 $ 117,767 $ $ 1,07(1,6(19 11.00% 
2018 144,150 $ 144,150 $ $ 1,1)87,923 13.25% 
2019 147,391 $ 147,391 $ $ 1,052,795 14.00% 
2020 149,817 $ 149,817 $ $ 1,070,122 14.00% 

2021 168,025 $ 168,025 $ $ 1,084,035 15.50% 
2022 201,557 $ 201,557 $ $ 1,3()(),368 15.50% 
2023 204,310 $ 204,310 $ $ 1,318,123 15.50% 
2024 198,621 $ 198,621 $ $ 1,281,421) 15.50% 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

   

2015 S 91,310 91,310 $ 289,873 31.50% 
2016 $ 83,307 83,307 $ 281,321 29.61% 
2017 110,878 110,878 $ 351,997 31.50% 

2018 86,124 86,124 $ 280,078 30.75% 
2019 65,930 65,930 $ 204,434 32.'15% 
2020 96,897 96,897 $ $ 298,147 32.50% 
2021 119,454 119,454 $ 355,683 33.58% 
2022 S 82,746 82,746 $ S 278,136 29.75% 
2023 140,655 140,655 $ $ 450,096 31.25% 
2()24 $ 188,661 188,661 $ $ 556,094 33.93% 

This schedule is intended to show information Jar 10 years. Additional yeam will he displayed as they become availa 

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to required supplementary' information. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

NOTE 1 BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The budgets for the General Fund, Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund, and the Ad 
Valorem Tax Collection Fund are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as 
originally adopted or as amended by the City Council. 

NOTE 2 BUDGET ADOPTION 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
supplementary information: 

1. The City Accountant prepares a proposed budget and submits it to the Mayor and Council 
for the fiscal year no later than 45 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

A sunmiary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed 
budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public liearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least 10 days after publication of the 
call for the hearing. 

4. After holding the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the bu&et, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfers of funds from one department, program, or 
function to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues 
exceeding amounts estimated require the approval of the City Council. 

6. All budgetaiy appropriations lapse at the end of each year, except for capital expenditures. 

NOTE 3 ACTUAL EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF BUDGETED APPROPRIATIONS 

Actual expenditures and transfers exceeded budgeted appropriations in the General Fund, the 
Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund, and the Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund by 
$931,002, $243,098, and $362,063 respectively. 

NOTE 4 RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 

Changes of benefit terms — There were no changes of benefit terms. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 
Year Ended June 30, 2024 

NOTE 4 RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (CONTINUED) 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System (Continued)  

Changes of assumptions — 

* 
Year ended 

June 30, 
Discount 

Rate 

Investment 
Rate 

of Return 
Inflation 

Rate 

Expected 
Remaining 

Service Lives 

Projected 
Salary 

Increase 
2015 7.750% 7.750% 3.000% 4 5.750% 
2016 7.500% 7.500% 2.875% 4 5.000% 
2017 7.500% 7.500% 2.875% 4 5.000% 
2018 7.400% 7.400% 2.775% 4 5.000% 
2019 7.275% 7.275% 2.600% 3 5.000% 
2020 7.000% 7.000% 2.500% 3 4.9% - 7.4% 
2021 6.950% 6.950% 2.500% 3 4.9% - 7.4% 
2022 6.850°A, 6.850% 2.500% 3 4.9% - 7.4% 
2023 6.850% 6.850% 2.500% 3 4.9% - 7.4% 
2024 6.850% 6.850% 2.500% 3 4.9% - 7.4% 

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 

Changes of benefit tenns — There were no changes of benefit terms. 

Changes of assurnptions — 

* 
Year ended 

June 30, 
Discouut 

Rate 

Investment 
Rate 

of Return 
Inflation 

Rate 

Expected 
Remaining 

Service Lives 

Projected 
Salary 

Increase 
2015 7.500% 7.500% 3.000% 4 4.00% - 10.00% 
2016 7.500% 7.500% 2.875% 4 4.25% - 9.75% 
2017 7.500% 7.500% 9.875% 4 4.25% - 9.75% 
2018 7.325% 7.325% 2.700% 4 4.25% - 9.75% 
2019 7.200% 7.200% 2.600% 4 4.25% - 9.75% 
2020 7.125% 7.125% 2.500% 4 4.25% - 9.75% 
2021 6.950% 6.950% 2.500% 4 4.7% - 12.3% 
2022 6.750% 6.750% 2.500% 4 4.7% - 12.3% 
2023 6.750% 6.750% 2.500% 4 4.7% - 12.3% 
2024 6.750% 6.750% 2.500% 4 4.7% - 12.3% 

* The amounts presented have a measureinent date of the previous fiscal year end. 

NOTE 5 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Charwes of benefits terms — None 

Changes of assumptions — None 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Justice System Funding Schedule — Collecting/Disbursing Entity 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

First Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
12/31/2023 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
6/30/2024 

Beginning Balance of Amounts Collected $ 22,054 S 23,036 

Add: Collections 
Criminal Fines and Costs 194.807 233,023 

Subtotal Collections 194,807 233,023 

Less: Disbursements to Governments and Nonprofits 

  

Louisiana Supreme Court - Criminal Fines 112 204 

St. Mary Parish Sheriff - Criminal Fines 2,696 2,445 
Indigent Defender Board - Criminal Fines 8,088 14,527 

Acadiana Crirninalistics Lab - Criminal Fines 7,067 9,880 
Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement - Criminal Fines 2,284 4,019 

Louisiana State Treasurer CMIS - Criminal Fines 726 1,269 
LA Dept of Health & Hospitals THI/SCI - Criminal Fines 465 849 
DISA Solutions, Inc. - Criminal Fees 3,662 5,640 

Less: Amounts Retained by Collecting Agency 
Amounts "Self-disbursed" to Collecting Agency - Criminal Fines 168,304 177,544 

Less: Disbursements to Individuals/3rd Party Collection or 

Processing Agencies 
Bond Fee Refunds 421 404 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 193,825 216,781 

Ending Balance of Amounts Collected but not Disbursed/Retained 23,036  S 39,278  

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Cornparison Schedule - Revenues 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budiizet 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Final 
Taxes: 

    

Sales $ 1,685,000 $ 1,751,867 $1,672,358 (79,509) 
Utility Franchise 280,000 283,305 246,543 (36,762) 
Housing Authority Payment 

in Lieu of Taxes 20,000 20,000 14,031 (5,969) 

 

1,985,00(1 2,055,172 1,932,932 (122,240) 

Licenses and Permits: 

    

Occupational Licenses 220,000 210,000 193,533 (16,467) 
Culvert Permits 400 275 175 (100) 
Building Permits 6,000 8,553 8,132 (421) 

 

226,400 218,828 201,840 (16,988) 

Intergovernmental: 

    

State of Louisiana - 

    

Beer Taxes 4,200 4,200 3,157 (1,043) 
Video Poker 6,500 6,458 5,490 (968) 
Prisoner Maintenance 55,000 58,676 32,066 (26,610) 
Capital Outlay Grant 

 

43,444 43,444 - 
Other state grants 1,200 1,000 - (1,000) 

St. Mary Parish Government - 

    

Appropriation from Parish Council 7,270 7,270 - (7,270) 
Prisoner Maintenance 97,000 97,000 120,816 23,816 

St. Mary Parish School Board - 
In-school Suspension 45,000 45,000 20,215 (24,785) 

Federal Grants - 

    

Bullet Proof Vest Grant 

 

- 7,962 7,962 
Federal Emergency 

Management Agency 

 

- 30,551 30,551 

 

216,170 263,048 263,701 653 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Revenues (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budttet 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

OrtOnal Final 
Charges for services: 

    

Garbage Fees 565,000 600,000 601,031 1,031 
Mosquito Abatement 

  

58,409 58,409 
Mechanic Shop Fees 145,000 145,000 148,403 3,403 
Summer Recreation Fees 1,000 1,000 

 

(1,000) 

 

711,000 746,()()0 8()7,843 61,843 

Fines and Forfeits 420,000 420,000 426,046 6,046 

Miscellaneous: 

    

Interest 7,500 16,056 21,136 5,080 
Lease on Property 11,202 11,202 9,602 (1,600) 
Oil and Gas Royalties 25() 250 75 (175) 
Private Donations - Community Center 

  

19,356 19,356 
Private Donations - Main Street 6,500 6,500 7,800 1,300 
Other Sources 115,000 115,000 209,094 94,094 

 

140,452 149,008 267,063 118,055 

Total Revenues S 3,699,022 $ 3,852,056 $3,899,425 S 47,369 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule —Expenditures 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

 

Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Final 
General Government: 

Adrninistrative - 

    

Salaries $ 206,000 230,175 $ 233,278 (3,103) 
Payroll Taxes 21,500 18,510 41,838 (23,328) 
Retirement Contributions 29,000 26,706 26,164 542 
Group Insurance 68,000 47,015 39,873 7,142 
Magistrate Fees 12,000 11,500 11,500 

 

Uniforms 600 450 - 450 
Travel and Employee Expense 10,500 23,727 25,263 (1,536) 
Telephone and Utilities 12,600 11,184 11,942 (758) 
Office Supplies 2,000 2,119 2,125 (6) 
Operating Supplies 5,500 4,491 29,360 (24,869) 
Repairs and Maintenance 3,000 4,488 15,107 (10,619) 
Training and Seminars 5,000 5,135 7,341 (2,206) 
Professional Fees 61,500 53,655 154,162 (100,507) 
Office Equipment Rentals 2,5()1) 2,488 2,013 475 
Dues and Subscriptions 1,500 1,075 2,194 (1,1 19) 
Donations and Grants 8,000 7,000 1,329 5,671 
Advertising and Publishing 21,000 17,023 13,974 3,049 
General Insurance 225,000 205,565 383,676 (178,111) 
Miscellaneous 48,590 62,245 15,853 46,392 

Total Administrative 743,790 734,551 1,016,992 (282,441) 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule —Expenditures (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 

  

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Final Actual 
Mechanic shop - 

    

Salaries $ 73,300 $ 78,1()6 $ 81,261 $ (3,155) 
Payroll Taxes 8,400 5,814 14,737 (8,923) 
Retirement Contribution 10,500 10,562 11,111 (549) 
Group Insurance 28,000 22,982 21,031 1,951 
Telephone and Utilities 6,400 6,946 5,230 1,716 
Operating Supplies 8,000 7,109 8,424 (1,315) 
Repairs and Maintenance 8,000 5,905 9,144 (3,239) 
Equipment Rentals 500 583 685 (102) 
Miscellaneous 85() 371 1,233 (862) 

Total Mechanic Shop 143,95() 138,378 152,856 (14,478) 

Total General Government 887,740 872,929 1,169,848 (296,919) 

Public Safety: 

    

Police - 

    

Salaries 1,050,000 1,159,240 1,133,359 25,881 
Payroll Taxes 75,000 89,647 2(16,812 (117,165) 
Retirement Contributions 145,000 189,454 198,239 (8,785) 
Group Insurance 365,000 332,931 258,036 74,895 
Uniform Allowances 1,500 6,467 1,311 5,156 
Prisoner Expense 75,000 79,390 83,258 (3,868) 
Telephone and Utilities 48,000 48,532 51,612 (3,080) 
Office Supplies 3,500 5,568 8,482 (2,914) 
Operating Supplies 24,000 18,023 48,900 (3(►,877) 
Repairs and Maintenance 8,500 9,916 15,798 (5,882) 
Equipment Rentals 12,000 23,002 22,480 522 
Vehicle ExTense 60,000 68,875 116,094 (47,219) 
Training Seminars 4,250 5,900 5,836 64 
Travel and Employee Expense 6,500 11,328 13,210 (1,882) 
Crime Lab 15,000 23,879 26,666 (2,787) 
Legal Expense 5,000 6,505 60,974 (54,469) 
Computer Software 50,000 38,936 41,746 (2,810) 
Miscellaneous 11,400 11,323 22,541 (11,218) 

Total Police 1,959,650 2,128,916 2,315,354 (186,438) 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule —Expenditures (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Budget 
Actual 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Final 
Fire - 

    

Salaries $ 18,000 $ 13,647 $ 11,558 $ 2,089 
Payroll taxes 1,400 1,000 2,641 (1,641) 
Telephone & Utilities 9,900 9,980 8,738 1,242 
Operating Supplies 7,000 3,500 2,507 993 
Repairs and Maintenance 20,000 18,043 7,026 11,017 
Vehicle Expenses 10,100 23,791 30,800 (7,009) 
Training and Seminars 1,500 700 

 

700 
Payment on Fire Truck 8,500 7,800 

 

7,800 
Miscellaneous 9,000 6,781 38 6,743 

Total Fire 85,400 85,242 63,308 21,934 

Total Public Safety 2,045,050 2,214,158 2,378,662 (164,504) 

Streets and Drainage: 

    

Salaries 284,500 272,323 273,883 (1,560) 
Payroll Taxes 23,600 19,970 47,701 (27,731) 
Retirement Contributions 36,500 36,994 36,046 948 
Group Insurance 65,000 52,847 54,831 (1,984) 
Uniform Allowance 900 1,539 1,601 (62) 
Engineering costs 25,000 12,000 

 

12,000 
Travel and Employee Expenses 250 ?,-)39 4,083 (1,844) 
Utilities 75,000 1(10,438 123,892 (23,454) 
Cheniicals and Agents 1,500 2,595 1,845 750 
Operating Supplies 15,000 16,802 18,105 (1,303) 
Repairs and Maintenance 37,700 25,372 177,813 (152,441) 
Equipment Rental 4,000 13,977 14,874 (897) 
Vehicle Expenses 29,500 39,280 105,923 (66,643) 
Mosquito Abatement - 

 

54,507 (54,507) 
Miscellaneous 7,700 18,808 11,398 7,410 

Total Streets and Drainage 6(16,15(1 615,184 926,502 (311,318) 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule —Expenditures (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Buket 

 

Variance With 
Final Buchzet 

Favorable 
(Unfavorable) 

 

Original Fina Actual 
Culture and Recreation: 

    

Salaries $ 55,000 $ 50,696 53,994 $ (3,298) 
Payroll Taxes 6,000 3,733 9,925 (6,192) 
Telephone and Utilities 65,200 67,433 57,663 9,770 
Office Supplies and Furnishings 1,500 2,168 1,382 786 
Operating Supplies 1,500 1,782 2,721 (939) 
Referee and Urnpire Fees 3,250 3,250 3,250 

 

Rental Fees 6,500 57,915 -)84 55,631 
Repairs & Maintenance 71,500 77,683 18,437 59,246 
Miscellaneous 23,65() 26,837 65,769 (38,932) 

Total Culture and Recreation 234,100 291,497 215,425 76,072 

Sanitation: 

    

Garbage Services Rendered 552,000 602,009 615,368 (13,359) 
Miscellaneous 1,000 L000 

 

1,000 
Total Sanitation 553,000 603,009 615,368 (12,359) 

Capital Outlay: 

    

Police Equipment and Vehicles 76,713 62,266 18,865 43,401 
Street Department Equipment 51,384 55,190 

 

55,190 
Administrative Equipment and 

Improvements 4,000 3,367 107,983 (104,616) 
Various Equipment 24,363 

   

Park Improvements 

  

53,830 (53,830) 
Street Improvements 7500 182,945 

 

182,945 
Total Capital Outlay 231,460 303,768 180,678 123,090 

Debt Service: 

    

Principal Paid 

  

151,666 (151,666) 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 

  

41,909 (41,909) 
Total Debt Service 

  

193,575 (193,575) 

Total Expenditures S 4,557,500 $ 4,900,545 S5,680,058  (779,513)  

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combinirw Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2024 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

 

Debt Sery ce Funds 

  

2020 
LCDBG 

Fund 

Fire 
Department 
Equipment 

2002 
Paving 

Assessments 

Sales Tax 
Refunding 

Bonds 

1973 
Paving 

Assessments 

Various 
Paving 

Assessments 
ASSETS 

Cash 
Interest-Bearing Deposits 
Receivables 

Assessments 
Other 

Due from Other Funds 
Total Assets 

$ 1,272 S - 
342,259 

133 

S 152,840 

6,628 

1,256 

$ 
143,721 

90 
26,554 

4,277 4,498 
135,714 

13 

1,272 342,392 160,724 170,365 $ 4,277 $ 140,225 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

      

Liabilities: 

      

Accounts payable 

 

- $ 

 

- $ 

Due to Other Funds 

  

1,868 4,426 

  

Unearned Revenues 

  

6,628 

   

Total Liabilities 

  

8,496 4,426 

  

Fund Balances: 

      

Restricted 1,272 34-',39-> 152,228 165,939 4,277 1402-'5 
Unassipled (Deficit) 

      

Total Fund Balances 1,272 342,392 152,228 165,939 4,277 140,225 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 1,272 $ 342,392 $ 160,724 $ 170,365 $ 4,277  $ 140,225 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 

   

Debt Service Funds (continued) 

  

2015 
Limited Tax 

Bonds 

Public 
Improvement 

Sales Tax 
Bonds 

Public 
Improvernent 

Bonds 

1990 
Pavin2 

Assessments 

2018 
Excess 

Revenue Bonds 

2021 
Limited Tax 

Bonds 
ASSETS 

       

Casli $ 90 77 $ - $ 160 S S 71 
Interest-Bearing Deposits - - 

 

3.91S - 

  

Receivables 

       

Assessments - - 

 

- - 

  

Otlier - - 

 

- - 

  

Due froni Otlier Funds - - 

 

924.419 15,555 

  

Total Assets $ 90 77 

 

928,337 15,715 S $ 71 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

       

Liabilities: 

       

Accounts payable $ - $ (S00) $ - - $ 

 

Due to Otlier Funds - 197.932 

 

54,697 123,590 

  

Unearned Revenues - - 

 

- - 

  

Total Liabilities - 197,132 

 

54.697 1/3,590 

  

Fund Balances: 

       

Restricted 90 - 

 

873,640 - 

 

71 
Unassigned (Deficit) - (197,055) 

 

- (107,875) 

  

Total Fund Balances 90 (197.055) 

 

873,640 (107,875) 

 

71 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 90 $ 77 

 

928,337 $ 15,715 $ 71 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 



CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 

ASSETS 

  

Capital Projects Funds 

  

Catherine 
Street 
Paving 

Construction 

Drainage 
and 

Relocation 
Project 

Regional 
Sewerage 

Facility 
Project 

Murphy City Half 
Street Jail 
Paving Complex 
Project Project 

2002 
Paving 
Project 

      

Cash 

 

S 1.473 S 16,080 S 487 S 1,627 
IMerest-Bearing Deposits 

 

121,865 100,857 37,204 

  

Receivables 

      

Assessments 
Other 

  

3 

   

Due from Other Funds 

 

21,443 573 

 

768 

 

Total Assets 

 

144,781 $ 117,513 $ 37,204 1,255 1,627 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

      

Accounts payable $ $ - $ $ - $ 

 

$ 
Due to Other Funds 

 

1,701 

 

392 

 

32,185 
Unearned Revenues 

Total Liabilities 

       

1,701 

 

392 

 

32,185 

Fund Balances: 

      

Restricted 

 

143,080 117,513 36,812 1,255 

 

Unassipted (Deficit) 

     

(30,558) 
Total Fund Balances 

 

143,080 117,513 36,812 1,255 (30,558) 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

 

$ 144,781 $ 117,513 37,204   1,255 $ 1,627 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Interest-Bearing Deposits 
Receivables 

Assessments 
Other 

Due from Other Funds 
Total Assets 

Capital Projects Funds (continued) 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

2018 
Street 

Improvements 

 

Water 
P lant 

Constniction 

 

100 

 

99 183,151 
885,538 

6.628 
239 

990,568 

 

100 

 

99 S. 2,066,124 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

     

Liabilities: 

     

Accounts payable $ 

 

$ 

 

(800) 
Due to Other Funds 

   

200 416,991 
Unearned Revenues 

    

6.628 
Total Liabilities 

   

200 422,819 

Fund Balances: 

     

Restricted 

 

10(1 

  

1,978,894 
Unassigned (Deficit) 

   

(101) (335,589) 
Total Fund Bakinces 

 

100 

 

(101) 1,643,305 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 

  

100  99 2,066,124 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

 

Special Revenue Funds 

 

Debt Service Funds 

  

2020 
LCDBG 

Fund 

Fire 
Department 
Equipment 

2002 
Pavinu 

Assessments 

Sales Tax 
Refunditw 

Bonds 

1973 
Paving 

Assessments 

Various 
Pavilw 

Assessments 
Revenues: 

       

Intergovernmental - $ 55,500 - - $ - - 
Miscellaneous - 4,036 - 8,647 

 

- 1,593 
Total Revenues 

 

59,536 - 8,647 

 

- 1,593 

Expenditures: 

       

Current - 

       

General Government 

       

Public Safety: 

       

Fire 

 

11,294 

     

Debt Service: 

       

Principal Retirement 

       

Interest and Fiscal Charges 

       

Total Expendinires 

 

11,294 

     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

 

48,242 

 

8,647 

  

1,593 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

       

Transfers In 
Transfers Out 

   

(281,817) 

   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

   

(281,817) 

   

Net Change in Fund Balance 

 

48,242 

 

(273,17(►) 

  

1,593 

Fund Balances, BeiAnning 1,272 294,150 152,228 439,109 

 

4,277 138,632 

Fund Balances, Ending 1,272 $ 342,392  $ 152,228  $ 165,939  

 

  4,277 $ 140,225  

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Debt Service Funds (continued) 
Public 

1 015 Improvement Public 1990 2018 2021 
Limited Tax Sales Tax I nap rov e me n t Paving Excess Limited Tax 

Bonds Bonds Bonds Assessments Revenue Bonds Bonds 
Revenues: 

Intergovenunental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

$ - 
- 

$ - 
- 

$ 
83 

$ - $ 

 

$ 

  

83 

    

General Government 350 

      

Public Safety: 

       

Fire 

       

Debt Service: 

       

Principal Retirement 85,000 - 265,000 

  

100,000 5,000 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 8,175 - 50,920 

  

16,157 10,808 
Total Expenditures 93,525 - 315,920 

  

116,157 15,808 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (93,525) - (315,837) 

  

(116,157) (15,808) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

       

Transfers In 93,525 - 541,374 

  

116,157 49,808 
Transfers Out - - 

    

- 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 93,525 - 541,374 

  

116,157 49,808 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

  

225,537 

   

34,000 

Fund Balances, Beginning 90 (197,055) 648,103 (1(17,875) 

  

(33,929) 

Fund Balances, Ending $ 90 $ (197,055)  $ 873,640 $ (107,875) $  

 

$ 71 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Capital Pro ects Funds 
Catherine Drainage Regional Murphy City Hall/ 

 

Street and Sewerage Street Jail 2002 
Paving Relocation Facility Paving Cornplex Paving 

Constniction Project Project Project Project Project 
Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

$ S - $ - $ - 
1,274 367 389 

1,274 367 389 
   

    

Expenditures: 
Current - 
General Governrnent 
Public Safety: 

Fire 
Debt Service: 

Principal Retirement 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 

Total Expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

     

Over Expenditures 1,274 367 389 

  

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

     

Transfers In 

     

Transfers Out 

     

Total Other Financnig Sources (Uses) 

     

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,274 367 389 

  

Fund Balances, Beginning 141,806 117,146 36,423 1,255 (30,558) 

Fund Balances, Ending 143,080 $ 117,513 $ 36,812 1,255 $ (30,558) 

     

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chanes in Fund Balance (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Revenues: 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Capital Projects Funds (continued) 

2018 Water 
Street Plant 

Improvements Construction 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

S - S 55,500 
16,389 

  

71,889 

Expenditures: 

   

Current - 

   

General Government 

  

350 
Public Safety: 

   

Fire 

  

11,294 
Debt Service: 

   

Principal Retirement 

  

455,001) 
Interest and Fiscal Charges 

  

86,060 
Total Expenditures 

  

552,704 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

  

(480,815) 

Other Financini4 Sources (Uses): 

   

Transfers In 

  

800,864 
Transfers Out 

  

(281,817) 
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

  

519,047 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

  

38,232 

Fund Balances, Beginning 100 (101) 1,605,073 

Fund Balances, Ending 100 S (101) $ 1,643,31)5 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Enterprise Fund 

Scliedule of Number of Utility Customers 
June 30, 2024 

Records maintained by the City indicated the following customers were being served during the months of 
June 2024 and 2023: 

Department 2024 2023 

Gas (metered) 1,349 1,375 
Water (metered) 2,598 2,583 

Sewerage 2,224 2,220 
Sanitation* 2,149 2,147 

* Reported in General Fund 

  

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Enterprise Fund — Utility Fund 

Cornparative Departmental Analysis of Revenue and Expenses 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 

Totals Gas 

  

2024 2023 2024 2023 
Operating Revenues: 

    

Charges for Services - 

    

Customers $3,016,751 $2,934,710 $ 817,819 $ 920,482 
Delinquent Charges 84,161 77,898 22,816 24,433 
Commissions, Transfers, 

and Reconnections 34,034 32,720 9,226 10,263 
Miscellaneous 137,113 167,644 37,170 52,582 

Total Operating Revenue 3,272,059 3,212,972 887,031 1,007,760 

Operating Expenses: 

    

Salaries 1,057,368 1,010,294 366,643 353,706 
Payroll Taxes 177,323 73,315 61,643 26,361 
Retirement Contributions 150,557 165,269 48,150 54,415 
Group Insurance 86,767 417,577 27,475 112,625 
Uncollectible Billings 20,781 8,904 5,556 2,775 
Gas Purchases 306,608 295,848 306,608 295,848 
Chemicals and Agents 252,636 286,116 - 1,819 
Repairs and Maintenance 159,143 214,598 3,144 23,043 
Vehicle Expenses 58,839 20,430 42,296 10,280 
Meters, Hardware & Lines 120,504 79,929 16,175 19,922 
Professional Fees 55,437 78,975 17,976 3,541 
Depreciation and Amortization 277,681 286,568 26,621 35,506 
Insurance 366,736 349,022 - - 
Office Expense 54,157 56,031 16,859 23,198 
Sewerage Treatment 467,034 296,596 

 

- 
Other 245,854 267,595 30,206 25,036 
Allocation of Administrative Expenses - - 242,765 332,019 

Total Operating Expenses 3,857,425 3,907,067 1,212,117 1,320,094 
Operating Income (Loss) (585,366) (694,095) $ (325,086) $(312,334) 

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses): 

    

Interest Income 29,487 18,682 

  

Nonemployer Contributions to Pension Plan 30,593 27,996 

  

Miscellaneous Expense (4,753) (8,609) 

  

Interest and Fiscal Charges (14,461) (3,989) 

  

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 40,866 34,080 

  

Loss Before Operating Transfers (544,500) (660,015) 

  

Operating Transfers In (Out) 321,529 77,421 

  

Change in Net Position $ (222,971)  S (582,594)  

  

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 
Enterprise Fund — Utility Fund 

Comparative Departmental Analysis of Revenue and Expenses (Continued) 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 

 

Water Sewerage Administrative 

 

1 014 1 013 2024 2023 2024 2023 
Operating Revenues: 

Charges for Services - 

      

Customers $1,358,377 $1,304,319 $ 840,555 $ 709,909 S - $ 
Delinquent Charties 37,895 34,621 23,450 18,844 

  

Conumssions, Transfers, 
and Reconnections 15,325 14,542 9,483 7,915 

  

M scellaneous 61,739 74,509 38,204 40,553 

  

Total Operating Revenue 1,473,336 1,427,991 911,692 777,221 

  

Operating Expenses: 

      

Saktries 436,200 385,743 - - 254,525 270,845 
Payroll Taxes 74,013 28,393 - - 41,667 18,561 
Retirement Contributions 62,382 58,713 - - 40,025 52,141 
Group Insurance 13,195 141,943 - - 46,097 163,008 
Uncollectible Billings 9,312 3,956 5,913 2,173 

  

Gas Purchases 

  

- - 

  

Chemicals and Agents 250,775 282,798 1,861 1,499 

 

- 
Repairs and Maintenance 121,564 137,401 33,396 53,145 1,039 1,009 
Vehicle Expenses 9,641 6,167 4,244 381 2,658 3,602 
Meters, Hardware & Lutes 99,309 50,908 5,020 9,099 

 

- 
Professional Fees (6,271) 17,416 12,242 5,518 31,490 52,500 
Depreciation 173,397 173,398 76,689 76,690 974 974 
Insurance - - - - 366,736 349,022 
Office Expense 1,103 1,667 - - 36,195 31,166 
Seweratie Treatment - 

 

467,034 296,596 - - 
Other 128,939 108,676 12,609 18,160 74,100 115,723 
Allocation of Administrative Expenses 403.227 470.468 249,514 256,064 (895,5061 (1,(158,551) 

Total Operatimi Expenses 1,776,786 1,867,647 868,522 719,325 

  

Operating Income (Loss) $ (3(13,450) $ (439,656) $ 43,170 $ 57,896 5 - - 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Insurance in Force 
June 30, 2024 

Description of Coverage Amount of Lirnits Ex ires Company 

Statutory Louisiana Benefits 

S1,000,000 each accident 

S1,000,000 each employee 

S1,0(10,00(1 each limit 

825,000 - Clerk 2/9/2025 

55,000 - Tax Collector 2/9/2025 

S5,000 - Public employees 8/21/2024 

S1,528 - Public right-of-wav 2/1/2025 

53,000,000 7/312024 

S3,000,000 7/3/2024 

52,000,000 7/3/2024 

S1,000,000 7/3/2024 

$1,000,000 7/3/2024 

52,000,000 7/3/2024 

52,436,000 - Building and contents, 4/11/2025 

limits vary per location  

CNA - Western Suretv 

CNA - Western Surety 

CNA - Western Surety 

CNA - Western Surety 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

American Bankers Insurance 

Workmen's Compensation 

Surety Bond 

Policemen's Professional Liability 

Cyber & Privacy Liability 

Commercial General Liability 

Commercial Automobile Liahility 

Public Officials Errors and Omissions 

Umbrella 

Flood 

6/4/2025 Louisiana Workers Comp. Corp. 

[nland Mai ne Various Coverages tor 8/3/2024 Frank's Agency, Inc. 

Schedule D Property 

Property - Excluding Wind & Hail S12,557,232 9/23/2024 Arthur J. Gallagher, RMS 

Property - Wind & Hail Only S12,795,152 9/30/2(124 Louisiana Citizen's Property Ins. Co. 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Interest-Bearing Deposits-All Funds 
June 30, 2024 

 

Term Maturity Date Interest Rate 
Total 

Amount 

General Fund: 

    

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 59,055 
Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 61,024 
Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 7,864 
Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 26.096 

Savint-ts N/A N/A 0.200% 311 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 31 days 7/19/2024 2.000% 45,000 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 91 days 7/1/2024 2.000% 50,000 
Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 91 days 8%14/2024 2.000% 30,000 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/25/2024 2.000% 86,487 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 31 days 7%31/2024 2.000% 500,000 

Total General Fund 

   

865.837 

Special Revenue Funds: 

    

Sewerage and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund: 

    

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 35,423 
Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/30/2024 2.000% 80,000 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/30/2024 2.000% 75,000 

    

190,423 
Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund: 

    

Savings N/A N/A 0.200% 8,114 

Fire Department Equipment Fund: 

    

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 240.848 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 90 days 7/7/2024 2.000% 25,000 
Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 1 year 9/24/2024 0.0001% 76,412 

    

342,260 

Total Special Revenue Funds 

   

540,797 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Interest-Bearing Deposits-AII Funds (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 

    

Total 

 

Term Maturity Date Interest Rate Amount 

Debt Service Funds: 

    

Public Improvement Bonds Fund - 

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 3,918 

Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds Series - 

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 143,721 

1966, 1967, 1969, 1980 and 1982 Paving Assessment Funds - 

   

Savin N/A N/A 0.200% 107 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/25/2024 2.000% 55,713 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/22/2024 2.000% 58,090 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/22/2024 2.000% 22,600 

    

136,510 

Total Debt Service Funds 

   

284,149 

Capital Projects Funds: 

    

1980 Drainage Project Fund - 

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 121,865 

Regional Sewerage Facility Project Fund - 

    

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/30/2024 2.000% 20,000 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/22/2024 2.000% 80,857 

    

100,857 

Murphy Street Paving Project Fund - 

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 37,204 

Total Capital Projects Funds 259,926 

(continued) 

See independent auditor's report. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Interest-Bearing Deposits-All Funds (Continued) 
June 30, 2024 

 

Term Maturity Date Interest Rate 
Total 

Amount 

Utility Fund: 

    

Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 34,007 
Insured Money Market N/A N/A 1.050% 56,876 
Savings N/A N/A 0.200% 7,497 
Savings N/A N/A 0.200% 231 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 10/18/2024 2.000% 140,275 

Certificate of Deposit - Patterson State Bank 182 days 7/27/2024 2.000% 47,793 

Total Utility Fund 

   

286,679 

Total - All Funds 

   

$2,2372388 

See independent auditor's report. 
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1201 Brashear Avenue, Suite 301 

Morgan City, LA 70380 

P 985-384-6264 

F 985-384-8140 
DSFCPAS.COM 

DARNALL SIKES 
& FREDERICK 
A CORPORATION OF CERTIFIED 

PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

OTHER LOCATIONS: 

Lafayette Eunice Abbeville 

  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Rodney Grogan, Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Patterson, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Patterson, Louisiana (hereinafter, "City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2025. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements, we considered the City's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the fmancial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying 
schedule of fmdings and responses as item 2024-001, that we consider to be a material weakness. 
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2024-
(102 through 2024-007. 

City of Patterson, Louisiana's Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City's response 
to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. The City's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intenial control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Darnai-6 Sikes & Frederick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

Morgan City, Louisiana 
March 28, 2()25 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Staternents 

2023-001: Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements  

Condition: During the performance of audit procedures, audit adjustments were 
proposed to correct rnisstatements that, individually and in the aggregate, were 
material to the City's financial statements. 

Recommendation: The City should develop and implement procedures to ensure 
that rnaterial misstatements in the financial statements are identified and corrected 
in a timely manner. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-001. 

7073-002: Noncompliance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act 

Condition: Expenditures and other financing uses in the General Fund exceeded 
budgeted appropriations by greater than five percent. 

Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to ensure that budgets 
are amended when required. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-002. 

2023-003: Late Submission of Audit Report 

Condition: The City's audit report was not completed and submitted to the Office 
of the Legislative Auditor within six months of the City's fiscal year end. 

Recommendation: The City should institute policies and procedures to ensure that 
its audit report is cornpleted and submitted to the Office of the Legislative Auditor 
within six months of year end. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-003. 

2023-004: Late Payment of Payroll Tax Deposits 

Condition: The City was delinquent in remitting payroll tax payments to federal 
tax authorities. 

Recommendation: The City should remit its payroll tax payrnents prior to required 
due dates to avoid unnecessary penalties and interest. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-004. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Staternents (Continued) 

2023-005: Late Payrnent of Financed Purchase Obligations  

Condition: The City rernitted financed purchase obligation payments after the due 
date resulting in additional interest charaes. 

Recommendation: The City should rernit payments toward its contracted 
obligations prior to required due dates to avoid unnecessary penalties and interest. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-005. 

2023-006: Donation of Public Funds  

Condition: The City appears to have recorded expenditures that do not rneet the 
three-prong Cahela's Test for determining proper expensing or transferring of 
public funds or property. 

Recommendation: The City should apply the Cabela's Test to all potential 
expenditures prior to spending or transferring public funds or property. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-006. 

2023-007: Accounting Records Not Properly Maintained 

Condition: The City could not produce support for all expenditures selected by 
auditors for testing. 

Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to ensure that adequate 
support is rnaintained for all accounting transactions. 

Status: This finding is unresolved. See current year finding 2024-007. 

Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

At June 30, 2023, the City did not meet the requirements to have a single audit in 
accordance with UnifOrm Administrative Requirements, Cosi Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards; therefore, this section is not applicable. 

Section III Internal Control and Compliance Findings in Accordance with the Requirements for an 
Alternative Compliance Examination 

There were no findings noted during the prior year audit related to the Alternative 
Compliance Exarnination. 

Section [V Management Letter 

No management letter was issued during the prior year audit. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 1: Summary of Auditor's Results 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Auditor's Report — Financial Statements  

An unmodified opinion has been issued on the City of Patterson, Louisiana's financial 
statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Deficiencies in Internal Control — Financial Reporting 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting disclosed one instance of a 
deficiency in internal control which is required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards and is listed as item 2024-0(11 in Part 2. We consider the deficiency to be a 
material weakness. 

Material Noncompliance and Other Matters — Financial Reporting 

The results of our tests disclosed six instances of noncompliance which are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and are listed as items 2024-0(12 through 
2024-007 in Part 2. 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

This section is not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government .4uditing Standards 

2024-0(11 Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements 

Year Initially Occurring: 2012 

Criteria: Internal control is a process, effected by those charged with governance, 
management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance about 
the achievement of the entity's objectives with regard to the reliability of financial 
reporting, effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations. 

A deficiency in internal control is defined as a condition where the design or 
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal 
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. It defines a material weakness as a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements may not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

2024-001 Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements (Continued)  

The identification by the auditor of a material misstatement of the financial 
statements under audit in circumstances that indicate that the misstatement would 
not have been detected by the City's internal control is an indicator of a rnaterial 
weakness in internal control. 

Condition: During the performance of audit procedures, audit adjustments were 
proposed to correct misstatements that, individually and in the aggregate, were 
material to the City's financial statements. 

Cause: The cause of the condition is failure by management to design and 
implement effective internal controls such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
a material misstatement will be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely 
basis by management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions. 

Effect: The effect of the condition is that financial statements may contain a 
material misstatement that is not detected and affected. 

Recommendation: The City should develop and implement procedures to ensure 
that material misstatements in the financial statements are identified and conected 
in a timely manner. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This inforrnation 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

2024-002 Noncompliance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act 

Year Initiallv Occurring: 2020 

Criteria: Louisiana R.S. 39:1311 requires that budgets be amended when actual 
receipts plus projected revenue collections for the year fail to meet budgeted 
revenues by five percent or more, or when actual expenditures plus projected 
expenditures to year end exceed budgeted expenditures by five percent or more. 

Condition: Expenditures and other financing uses in the General Fund, Sewerage 
and Solid Waste Sales Tax Fund, and Ad Valorem Tax Collection Fund exceeded 
budgeted appropriations by greater than five percent, in each fund respectively. 

Cause: The condition results from the failure to arnend the operating budget for 
expenditures and transfers when they exceed budgeted appropriations by greater 
than five percent. 

Effect: The City is not in compliance with the Local Government Budget Act. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

2024-002 Noncompliance with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act (Continued)  

Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to ensure that budgets 
are amended when required. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This information 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

2024-003 Late Submission of Audit Report 

Year Initially Occurring:  2022 

Criteria: Louisiana R.S. 24:513 et seq. provides for the following: "Such audits 
shall be completed within six months of the close of the entity's fiscal year." 

Condition: The City's audit report was not completed and submitted to the Office 
of the Legislative Auditor within six months of the City's fiscal year end. 

Cause: The condition results frorn a failure to comply with state statutes. 

Effect: The City is not in compliance with R.S. 24:513 et seq. 

Recommendation: The City should institute policies and procedures to ensure that 
its audit report is cornpleted and submitted to the Office of the Legislative Auditor 
within six months of year end. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This information 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

2024-0(14 Late Payment of Payroll Tax Deposits 

Year Initially Occurring:  2023 

Criteria: Regulation 31.6071(a)-1 of the Internal Revenue Code provides "each 
ram-) required to be made under §31.6011(a)-1, in respect of the taxes imposed 
by the Federal Insurance Contributions Act (26 U.S.C. 3101-3128), or required to 
be made under §31.6011(a)-4, in respect of income tax withheld, shall be filed on 
or before the last day of the first calendar month following the period for which it 
is made." 

Condition: The City was delinquent in remitting payroll tax payments to federal 
tax authorities. 

Cause: The condition results from the failure to rernit payroll tax deposits tirnely 
in accordance with applicable regulations. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

2024-004 Late Payrnent of Payroll Tax Deposits (Continued)  

Effect: The City has been assessed penalties and interest for the failure to tirnely 
file and rernit payroll taxes. 

Recommendation: The City should rernit its payroll tax payments prior to required 
due dates to avoid unnecessary penalties and interest. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This information 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

2024-005 Late Payment of Financed Purchase Obligations 

Year Initially Occurring:  2023 

Criteria: Louisiana R.S. 38:2191(A) states "All public entities must pay all 
obligations...arising under public contracts when the obligations become due and 
payable under the contract." 

Condition: The City remitted financed purchase obligation payrnents after the due 
date resulting in additional interest charges. 

Cause: The condition results from the failure to remit financed purchase obligation 
payments tirnely in accordance with the terms of the purchase agreernent. 

Effect: The City has been assessed penalties and interest for the failure to timely 
remit payments under contracted obligations. 

Recornrnendation: The City should remit payments toward its contracted 
obligations prior to required due dates to avoid unnecessary penalties and interest. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This information 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

2024-0(16 Donation of Public Funds 

Year Initially Occurring: 2023 

Criteria: Article VII, Section 14(A) of the Louisiana Constitution states "Except 
as otherwise provided by this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of 
value of the state or of any political subdivision shall not be loaned, pledged, or 
donated to or for any person, association, or corporation, public or private." 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

2024-006 Donation of Public Funds (Continued)  

The Attorney General has developed a three-prong test to follow the Court's 
interpretation of Article VII, Section 14(A), which is known as the Cabela 's Test. 
Per the Cabela 's Test, all three of the following elements must be met for a public 
entity to properly expend or transfer public funds or property: 

1. The expenditure or transfer rnust be for a public purpose that comports 
with the governmental purpose which the entity has legal authority to 
pursue: 
The expenditure or transfer of public funds or property, taken as a whole, 
does not appear to be gratuitous; and, 

3. Evidence rnust demonstrate that the public entity has a demonstrable, 
objective, and reasonable expectation of receiving a benefit or value at 
least equivalent to the amount expended or transferred. 

Condition: The City appears to have recorded expenditures that do not meet the 
three-prong Cabela's Test for detemiining proper expensing or transferring of 
public funds or property. 

Cause: The condition results from the failure to detennine whether certain 
expenditures met the three-prong Cahela's Test before entering into those 
transactions, specifically that the entity did not appear to have a demonstrable, 
objective, and reasonable expectation of receiving a benefit or value at least 
equivalent to the amount expended. 

Effect: The City rnay not be in compliance wi h Article VII, Section 14(A) of the 
Louisiana Constitution. 

Recommendation: The City should apply the C'abela's Test to all potential 
expenditures prior to spending or transferring public funds or property. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This information 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

Part 2: Findings Relating to an Audit in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards (Continued) 

2024-007 Accounting Records Not Properly Maintained  

Year Initially Occurring: 2023 

Criteria: Louisiana R.S. 24:515 A states "All auditees shall designate or provide 
an office for their secretary, treasurer, or principal finance officer where their 
books and records rnust be kept. All accounts of such public funds shall be kept in 
the form prescribed by the legislative auditor and lie shall have the authority to 
install a system of accounting in any office which he is authorized to examine and 
audit. Any failure of any auditee to furnish the legislative auditor with any 
information requested shall be immediately reported to the Legislative Audit 
Advisoiy Council which shall take such action as it may deem proper." 

Condition: The City could not produce support for certain revenues and 
expenditures selected by auditors for testing. 

Cause: The condition results from the failure to maintain appropriate accounting 
records to support certain transactions which were selected by auditors for testing. 

Effect: The City may not be in compliance with Louisiana R.S. 24:515 A. 

Recommendation: The City should implement procedures to ensure that adequate 
support is maintained for all accounting transactions. 

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: This infonnation 
is in the City's separate Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year 
Findings. 

Part 3: Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards 

At June 30, 2024, the City did not meet the requirernents to have a single audit in accordance 
with Unit" brm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements Ibr 
Federal Awards; therefore, this section is not applicable. 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

2024-001 Material Adjustments to the Financial Statements 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City is working to ensure that 
all necessaiy adjustments are captured and included in its financial statements prior to the 
commencement of audit procedures. Bank statements are being printed and bank 
reconciliations are being done on a monthly basis. 

Name and Title of Contact Person:  Rodney Grogan, Mayor 

2024-002 Noncompliance with the Louisiana Local Goveniment Budget Act 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City has been closely 
monitoring the budget and has been making necessary amendments as required. The budget 
will be amended several times throughout the fiscal year. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 

2024-003 Late Submission of Audit Report 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City is working to ensure that 
its books and records are complete in sufficient time for its independent auditors to perform 
their audit procedures and complete the audit engagement to allow for the submission of the 
completed audit report to be submitted in a timely manner. The City has contracted with an 
external accounting firm to assist with closing its books, making necessary accruals and 
reclassification adjustments, and ensuring that necessary documentation is gathered to support 
the underlying account balances in the financial statements. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 

2024-004 Late Payment of Payroll Tax Deposits 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City is aware of its obligations 
for the timely payment of payroll taxes. The City has filed a tax abatement. The City has been 
paying payroll taxes on time since the change in employment. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 

2024-005 Late Payrnent of Financed Purchase Obligations 

Management's Response and Planned Conective Action: The City is aware of its 
responsibilities for the timely payment of its obligations to its creditors and the negative results 
of failing to remit lease payments in a timely manner. The City Clerk and City Accountant are 
working together daily to get payments mailed out in a timely manner. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 
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CITY OF PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

Management's Corrective Action Plan for Current Year Findings (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 

2024-006 Donation of Public Funds 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City will ensure that its 
expenditures are for a valid public purpose. The City will apply the Cabela's test prior to 
spending or transferring public funds or property. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 

2024-007 Accounting Records Not Properly Maintained 

Management's Response and Planned Corrective Action: The City is implementing procedures 
to ensure that adequate support is maintained for all accounting transactions. The City will 
ensure that all expenditures are adequately supported by valid documentation and that the 
documentation is readily available for review by its auditors. 

Name and Title of Contact Person: Rodney Grogan, Mayor 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT' S REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Honorable Mayor Grogan and members of the City Council of the City of Patterson, Louisiana (the 
"City") and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified 
in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal 
period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024. The City's management is responsible for those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. 

The City has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified 
in LLA's SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and 
acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user 
of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

1) Written Policies and Procedures 

A. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations. 

i. Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

ii. Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iii. Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 

iv. Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures should include management's actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above. 
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v. Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee 
rates of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the finctions noted above with the 
exception of (3) approval process .for employee rates of pay or approval and ma y intenance of pa 
rate schedules. 

vi. Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the fimctions noted above. 

vii. Travel and Expense Rehnbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the fimctions noted above. 

viii. Credit Cards (and dehit cards, fuel cards, purchase cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of 
fuel card purchases). 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the limetions noted above. 

ix. Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and 
officials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the fimaiwis noted above with the 
exceptimi (:?f(4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees 
and qtficials were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy. 

x. Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address ihe functions noted above with the 
exception of (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting requirements. 

xi. Information Technology Disaster Recomg/ Business Continuity, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testinverification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the fUnctions noted above. 

xii. Prevention of Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Written policies and procedures were obtained and address the functions noted above with the 
exception of (2) annual employee training. 



2) Board or Finance Committee 

A. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the board's 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, and: 

i. Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the rninutes 
referenced or included montlily budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarter budget-
to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary fwids, and semi-annual budget-to-actual, at a minimwn, on 
all special revenue funds. 

Observed that the minutes for two monthly mcetin,gs did not include budget-to actual comparisons. 

iii. For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unrestricted fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative eliding unrestricted fund balance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unrestricted fund balance in the 
general fund. 

Obtained the prior year's audit report and observed that the unrestricted fund balance was positive 
in the general fUnd. 

iv. Observe whether the board/finance committee received written updates of the progress of resolving 
audit finding( s), according to management's corrective action plan at each meeting until the 
findings are considered fully resolved. 

Observed that thc minutcs did not reference or include written updates of the pro,gress of resolving 
audit findings. 

3) Bank Reconciliations 

A. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating 
account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each account selected, and observe that: 

Obtained listing of-bank accounts from mana,gement and management's representation that the listing 
is complete. 

i. Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions notcd. 

ii. Bank reconciliations include written evidence that a member of management or a board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
within 1 month of the date the reconciliation was prepared (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically 
logged); and 

Bank reconciliations do not include written evidence that a member of management or a hoarcl 
member who does not handle ca.sh, post ledgers, or iSsUe checks has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation. 

3 



iii. Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable. 

For four qf five hank accounts tested, management does not have documentation reflecting that it 
has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the 
statement closing date. For one qffive hanks accounts tested, there are no reconciling items 
outstandinglbr more than 12 months. 

4) collections (excluding electronic fund transfers) 

A. Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites 
(or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Obtained listing of deposit ,sites and management's representation that the listing is complete. 

B. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and management's representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

Obtained listing qf collection locations and management's representation that the listing ts complete. 

i. Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exception,s noted. 

ii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/rnaking bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

Employees responsible for collecting cash are responsible for preparing/Making bank deposits. 

iii. Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees who 
have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for Bank Reconciliations 
procedure #3A (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates 
randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). 
Alternately, the practitioner mny use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the 
deposit dates for testing, such a,v a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain 
supporting documentation for each of the 10 deposits and: 
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i. Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank staternent. 

No etceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that the deposit was rnade within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week if the depository is rnore than I() miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

v. Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

No exceptions noted. 

5) Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases, travel reimbursements, and petty cash 
purchases)  

A. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

Obtained listing qf locations that process payments and management's representation that the listing 

is complete. 

B. For each location selected under #SA above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

i. At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase; 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files; 

Employees responsiblelbr processing payments are not prohibited from adding/modifYing vendor 

files. 

iv. Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments; and 

Employees responsible fbr processing payments are also responsible for mailing signed checks. 

v. Only employee/officials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement (release) of 
funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic transfer (EFT), wire transfer, 
or some other electronic means. 

No etceptions noted. 



C. For each location selected under procedure #.5A above, obtain the entity's non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management's 
representation that the population is cornplete. Randomly select 5 disbursernents for each location, 
obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

i. Observe that the disbursement whether by paper or electronic rneans, matched the related original 
itemized invoice and supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were 
received by the entity, and 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
loq,ring) of segregation of duties tested under #5B above, as applicable. 

In one instance, we observed the same employee requested and approved, and subsequently signed 
the check for, the disbursement. hi another instance, we observed a completed purchase order 
which did not contain a signature qf approval. 

D. Using the entity's main operating account and the rnonth selected in Bank Reconciliations procedure 
#3A, randomly select 5 non-payroll-related electronic disbursernents (or all electronic disbursernents if 
less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was (a) approved by only those persons 
authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the entity's policy, and (b) approved by the required 
number of authorized signers per the entity's policy. Note: lino electronic payments were made from 
the main operating account during the month selected, the practitioner should select an alternative 
month and/0r account lbr testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

In three electronic disbursements out Wive tested, it was Puna' that only one signer, rather than the 
required two signers, approved the electronic disbursements. 

6) Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/Purchase Cards (Cards) 

A. Obtain frorn management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and purchase 
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Obtain rnanaement's representation that the listing is cornplete. 

Obtained listing of active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards, including the card 
numbers and the names of the persons who rnaintainecl possession of the cards, and Inanagernent's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

B. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one rnonthly bank staternent), obtain supporting docurnentation, 
and: 

i. Observe whether there is evidence that the rnonthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved) 
by someone other than the authorized card holder ( those instances requiring such approval that rnay 
constrain the legal authority of certain public officials, such as the mayor of a Lawrason Act 
municipality, should not be reported); and 

Three cards tested did not have evidence that the statements were reviewed and approved in writing 
by someone other than the authorized card holder. 
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ii. Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Observed that one card tested had late fee charges assessed on ihe selected statement. No 
exceptions noted on the other cards tested. 

C. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under procedure #6B above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and 
obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (e.g., each card should have 10 transactions 
subject to inspection). For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) an original itemized 
receipt tliat identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing receipts, the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and observe whether 
management had a compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt 
statement" that is subject to increased scrutiny. 

For seven transactions tested on one credit card, documentation could not he provided by the client 
that identified precisely what was purchased or written documentation of the business/public purpose 
of ihe purchase. In another transaction on the same credit carcl, sales tax was noted as being chargccl 
on the purchase. On a different credit card, fbr one transaction tested, public purpose of ihe purchase 
was not documented. 

7) Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements (excluding card transactions) 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

Obtained listing of all travel and iravel-relaied expense reimbursements, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

i. If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

Ori,ginal itemized receipt fbr one individual showed sales tax charge was reimbursed. No 
exceptions noted Oil other reimbursements. 

iii. Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public purpose 
(for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those individuals 
participating) and other documentation required by Written Policies and Procedures procedure 
#1A(vii): and 

No exceptions noted. 

iv. Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by sorneone other than 
the person receiving reimbursement. 
IVo exceptions noted. 
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8) Contracts 

A. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, materials and 
supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately', the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the practitioner's contract, and: 

Obtained listing of all agreements/contracts that were initiated or renewed and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

i. Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law e.g., solicited 
quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy or law 
(e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms provided 
for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract tenns 
(e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented.) 

No contracts were amenda 

iv. Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice and related 
payrnent agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

No exceptions noted. 

9) Payroll and Personnel 

A. Obtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel 
files. 

Obtained a listing qf employees and management's representation that the listing is complete. Agreed 
authorized pay rates to related paid salaries without exception. 

B. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees/officials selected under 
#9A above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

i. Observe that all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatoly); 

No exceptions noted. 

ii. Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials; 

No exceptions noted. 

iii. Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's cumulative 
leave records; and 

There was no leave accrued or taken during the pay period tested. 
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iv. Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salaiy/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in manaaement's termination 
payment calculations and the entity's policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the 
employee's or official's cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee's or official's 
authorized pay rates in the employee's or official's personnel files, and agree the termination payment 
to entity policy 

No exceptions noted. 

D. Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of third party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by 
required deadlines. 

Per management, there are payroll tax liabilities from prior periods that are payable to the IRS as qf 
the end githe fiscal vear. Also. Forms 941 jar two out offbur quarters during the fiscal period were 
notified bv required deadlines. 

10) Ethics 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A obtain 
ethics documentation from management, and 

i. Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the calendar year are required by R.S. 42:1170; and 

No exception noted. 

ii. Observe whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the fiscal period, as 
applicable. 

No exception noted. 

B. Inquire and/or observe whether the agency has appointed an ethics designee as required by R.S. 
42:1170. 

No exception noted. 

11) Debt Service 

A. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt instruments on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was obtained for 
each debt instrurnent issued as required by Article VII, Section 8 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Management asserted that there were no bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the 
fiscal period. 
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B. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supportina documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and aa-ree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Obtained a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period, and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. No exceptions noted. 

12) Fraud Notice 

A. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled as required by 
R.S. 24:523. 

Management asserted that there no misappropriations of public Ands and assets during the fiscal 
period. 

B. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

No exceptions noted. 

13) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 

A. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report "We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management." 

i. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data (if 
there is no written documentation, then inquire of personnel responsible for backing up critical 
data) and observe evidence that such backup (a) occurred within the past week, (b) was not stored 
on the government's local server or network, and (c) was encrypted 

We pertbrmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

ii. Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has teste&verified that its backups 
can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for testing/verifying 
backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was successfully performed 
within the past 3 months. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

iii. Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and observe 
while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current and active antivirus 
software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are currently 
supported by the vendor. 

We perfi)rmed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 
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B. Randomly select 5 terminated employees (or all terminated employees if less than 5) using the list of 
terminated employees obtained in procedure #9C. Observe evidence that the selected tenninated 
employees have been removed or disabled from the network. 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain 
cybersecurity training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates that the following employees/officials with access to the agency's information technology 
assets have completed cybersecurity training as required by R.S. 42:1267. 

No exceptions noted. 

14) Sexual Harassment 

A. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from Payroll and Personnel procedure #9A, obtain 
sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe that the documentation 
demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during 
the calendar year as required by R.S. 42:343. 

No exceptions noted. 

B. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity does not have a website). 

No exceptions noted. 

C. Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

i. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

Observed 80% of public servants ift the agency have completed training requirements. 

ii. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

No sexual harassment complaints were received by the City. 

iii. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

Not applicable. 

iv. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or corrective 
action; and 

Not applicable. 

v. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Not applicable. 
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We were engaged by the City to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Darnag Sikes & Frederick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 

Morgan City, Louisiana 
March 28, 2025 
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CITY CLERK 
Midge Bourgeois 

MAYOR 
Rodney A. Grogan 

COUNCIL 
DeMale Bowden Jr 

Lee A. Condolle 
Ray Dewey Sr. 
Mamie Perry 

Miranda Weinbach 

CITY OF PATTERSON 
PATTERSON, LOUISIANA 

70392 

  

1314 Main Street P. O. Box 367 
Phone (985) 395-5205 

Fax (985) 395-8305 

Responses to Exceptions Identified in the SAUP Report 

WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
. A. v), ix), x), and xii) — Management is in the process of reviewing and revising all current policies and 

procedures and making modifications as determined to be necessary. 

BOARD OR FINANCE COMMITTEE 
2. A. ii) and iv) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for these 

exceptions. 

BANK RECONCILIATIONS 
3. A. ii) and iii) — Management will address and deterrnine the necessary mitigating controls for these 

exceptions. 

COLLECTIONS 
4. B. ii) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for this exception. 

NON-PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS 
5. B. iii) and iv) — Managernent will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for these 

exceptions. 
C. ii) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitiaating controls for these exceptions. 
D.a) and b) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for these 
exceptions. 

CREDIT CARDS 
6. B. i) and ii) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for these 

exceptions. 
C. I), 2), and 3)— Management will address and determine 'the necessary mitigating controls for these 
exceptions. 

TRAVEL 
7. A: ii) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for these exceptions. 

PAYROLL 
9. D.) — Management will address and determine the necessary mitigating controls for this exception. 

City of Patterson is an Equal Oppokunity Provider and Employer 
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